
  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVE•YPSILANTI, MI 48197 

SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO • CLERK HEATHER JARRELL ROE • TREASURER STAN 
ELDRIDGE TRUSTEES: RYAN HUNTER • JOHN P. NEWMAN II • GLORIA PETERSON •  
DEBBIE SWANSON  

 REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
        TUESDAY, JULY 16, 2024 

  6:00 P.M. 
1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION

3. FIRE DEPARTMENT NEW HIRES

4. CONSENT AGENDA

A. MINUTES OF THE JUNE 18TH 2024 REGULAR MEETING

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR JULY 2, 2024, IN THE AMOUNT OF
$2,120,169.44

2. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR JULY 16, 2024, IN THE AMOUNT OF
$688,319.22

3. CLARITY HEALTHCARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH EFT FOR JUNE 2024 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $48,261.29

4. CLARITY HEALTHCARE DEDUCTIBLE ADMIN FEE FOR JUNE 2024 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $1,580.73

C. TREASURER’S REPORT JUNE 2024

5. ATTORNEY REPORT

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE

NEW BUSINESS 

1. 1ST READING OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2024-507, AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 62, ARTICLE IV, SECTION 62-77 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, TO ADJUST SEWER RATES

2. 1ST READING OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2024-508, AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 62, ARTICLE IV, SECTION 62-76 (a)(1) OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, TO ADJUST WATER SERVICE

3. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION FOR THE SALE OF TOWNSHIP OWNED PROPERTY 
AT 475 GREENLAWN

4. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION FOR THE TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY AND ASSESSOR TO 
PROCEED WITH THE NEGOTIATIONS OF THE SALE OF THE TOWNSHIP 
PROPERTY AT 1293 HOLMES

5. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO ACCEPT THE UPDATED AGREEMENT WITH 
TEESNAP FOR THE GREEN OAKS GOLF COURSE TEE SHEET AND POINT OF SALE 
OPERATIONS

6. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE 2024-2025 CONTRACT WITH WASHTENAW 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOR BUILDING USE AT THE YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP 
COMMUNITY CENTER



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 2 June 18, 2024 

7. REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION FOR CIRCUIT COURT LITIGATION TO ABATE
PUBLIC NUISANCE PROPERTIES IDENTIFIED AS 8061 MERRITT RD, 541
WOODLAWN, 922 N RIVER ST, AND 974 N PROSPECT RD BUDGETED IN LINE# 101-
729-801.023

8. RESOLUTION 2024-10 AUTHORIZING A CHARITABLE GAMING LICENSE TO JOHN E.
LAWRENCE ENTERTAINMENT

9. BUDGET AMENDMENT #9

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 

1. REQUEST TO AUTHORIZE BARR ENGINEERING TO PREFORM REQUIRED 
STUDIES AT THE HYDRODAM IN THE AMOUNT OF $250,000.00 BUDGETED IN LINE 
ITEM #101.902.981.110

2. REQUEST TO APPROVE BALLARD MARINE CONSTRUCTION SLUICE GATE 
INSPECTION PROJECT CHANGE ORDER #1 AND #2 FOR THE HYDRO STATION IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $15,000.00 BUDGETED IN LINE #101.902.981.110

3. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO ACCEPT THE LOW QUOTE FOR $442,600.00 
FROM HEANEY GENERAL CONTRACTING FOR THE SANITARY AND WATER LINE 
SITE WORK AT FORD HERITAGE PARK AND RESTROOM DEMOLITION, SITE 
WORK AND PAVILLION INSTALLATION AT LAKESIDE PARK (ARPA)

4. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO ACCEPT THE LOW QUOTE FOR $582,600.00 
FROM KAB ENTERPRISES, INC FOR THE REPAIRS OF BURNS PARK WALKWAY 
AND PLAYGROUND REPAIRS AND WEST WILLOW PARK WALKWAY AND 
PLAYGROUND REPLACMENT

5. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO ACCEPT THE LOW QUOTE FOR $218,000.00 
FROM INNOIVSTA, LCC FOR THE PLAYGROUND RE-SURFACING PROJECT AT 
FORD HERITAGE (ARPA)

6. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO APPROVE SPICER GROUP TO PROVIDE 
CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION AND ADMINISTRATION RELATED TO THE BURNS 
PARK, FORD HERITAGE PARK PLAYGROUND, FORD HERITAGE PARK 
RESTROOM, LAKESIDE PARK AND WEST WILLOW PARK FOR $94,000 (ARPA)

OTHER BUSINESS 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

• THREE MINUTES PER PERSON
• ALL COMMENTS MUST BE ADDRESSED TO THE CHAIR
• PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE ALSO WELCOME AS THE BOARD ADDRESSES EACH

AGENDA ITEM

BOARD MEMBER UPDATES 



 

DEPARTMENTAL 

REPORTS 

 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Jimmie Wilson Jr 

Date:   July 8, 2024 

To:   Clerk’s Office 

CC:   Brenda Stumbo, Supervisor 

From: Michael Saranen, Operation Manager 

      
Subject: Department Report (activities in June 2024)  

 

Activities: 

Ford Lake Dam (Hydro Station) 
 

General Operation Summary: 
The Hydro Station is operating safely and continues to get routine safety inspections 
and preventive maintenance. Operators had 1 after-hour call-in for the month.  
 
Average precipitation for the month of is around 3.26”, this year it just above normal 
at 3.83”.  

 
Regulatory Status: 
  

For 2024- 
- DSSMR- Complete, Filed with FERC 
- Owners Dam Safety Program Review - Complete 
- EAP annual update and test -  
- EAP First Responder Training - Complete 
- WQ Report – Equipment deployed gathering data 
- Nuisance Plant Plan Report - Started 
- Wildlife Plan Report -  
- Historical Activity Report - 
- Gate Certification -  
- Security Review - Started 
- FERC Security Inspection - TBD 
- FERC Annual Dam Safety Inspection – Complete  
- Annual DEQ Lake Operation Monitoring Report- Complete 
- Spillway Assessment Action Plan - Filed, addressing comments by FERC, Ongoing 
- Public Safety Plan - Installing new safety signs in 2024 
- Fish & Sediment Analysis - Not required until 2033 
- Part 12 Comprehensive Analysis Inspection – Started, getting proposals 

 



 

Future Items: 
 

- Shoreline Restoration, Ford Lake Park 
- PMF Study for watershed – Discussing  
- Shoreline Erosion Survey – 2025 
- Protective Relay testing – 2024 
- Emergency Gen Testing – 2025 
- Concrete repairs – On Hold 
- Windows/additional concrete repairs (powerhouse and dam) - TBD 
- EAP Tabletop and Functional Exercise – 2024, July 
- EAP Rewrite - 2025 

 
 

Projects: 
 
Concrete Repairs- Delayed, approved by the Board to go out to bid. Construction was 
planned for summer 2023, however the cost came in doubled and the project will be 
rebid in coming months.  
 
Sluice Gate Stress Analysis- 2024, the FERC has requested a detailed study of the 
spillway gates. This is a common industry request from FERC as they continuously 
look at safety involving dams. We are currently working with engineering to develop 
a procedure to complete this task. Awarded, Start in July 
 
Turbine Inspections and Maintenance- Conduct cleaning, inspection and 
maintenance on turbine equipment and associated spaces. #2 was inspected and 
found to be satisfactory. #1 is planned in the 1st quarter of the year. Delayed 
 
 
Operation Summary 

 
2024 June YTD 5 Year Ave. 

Precipitation total (inches)1 3.83 14.22 38.0 
Days Online 30 183 359.4 

Generation MWH (estimated) 384.075 6,310.606 10,469.1 
Generation MWH lost (estimated)* 152.112 223.230 515.6 

    
After Hour Call In    

Water levels 0 10 38 
Mechanical/Electrical 1 4 4 

Other 0 0 2 
Totals 1 14 43 

 
 
 



 

 
 
 

Recent History 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 
Precipitation total 

(inches) 
45.4 41.4 40.0 26.37 36.65 

Days Online 350.6 359.7 360.0 363.5 363.4 
Generation MWH 

(estimated) 
12,576.7 10,722.7 10,524.5 9,185.151 9,336.397 

Generation MWH lost 
(estimated)* 

1,005.8 570.2 423.2 362.5 216.076 

      
After Hour Call In      

Water levels 30 69 33 36 22 
Mechanical/Electrical 3 4 9 0 3 

Other 0 2 0 4 2 
Totals 33 75 42 40 27 

 
 
1 Preliminary totals from NOAA for Detroit  
*losses related to scheduled & unscheduled maintenance and water quality 
discharges. 

 
Water Quality Summary: 
MOU with City of Ann Arbor 
The Parties share a common interest in eliminating and preventing nuisance blue 
green algae blooms in Ford and Belleville Lakes, and they acknowledge that 
information about water quality and conditions in the lakes is important to advancing 
their common interest. THEREFORE, the Parties enter into this Memorandum of 
Understanding to memorialize their understanding as to their efforts to cooperate and 
work together to monitor, collect, and share water quality information regarding Ford 
and Belleville Lakes. 
 
Work Plan 

- MOU has been signed, for 2024 the current plan is to gather WQ data for future use. 
- Additional activities may be identified in the coming months. 

Current Activities 
- WQ lake buoy has been deployed and is gathering data. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Sluice Gate Usage Summary 
Releasing water from the sluice gates is primary done to maintain lake level when flow 
exceeds the powerhouse. At certain times, we can use the gates to help keep the lake 
mixed to maintain oxygen levels (effectiveness depends on a number of factors) at the 
bottom of the lake. 
 
The water quality monitoring begins on June 1st and will end on September 30th; 
operators monitor the water quality conditions and take readings as outline in the WQ 
Plan. The dam releases water from the bottom gates to maintain run of river and/or 
help with water quality in Ford Lake. The Federal License requires us to pass water 
with a minimum of 5mg/l of dissolved oxygen all the time.  Therefore, spilling from the 
bottom gates in the summer to improve the lake is not always possible. 
 

            Current Year       Current Year  Current Year     Current Year    Prior Yr. 
2024 Days Spilled         Lost KWh*      Lost KW$*        Lost KW$* 
January 7.6 0 0 0 
February 11.4 0 0 0 
March .4 0 0 0 
April 8.75 0 0 0 
May 9.1 39,205 $ 1,628 $ 1,597 
June 21.7 152,112  $ 9,386 $ 8,241 
July    $ 373 
August    $ 268 
September    $ 86 
October    0 
November    0 
December    0 
Totals 37.25 191,317 $ 11,014     $ 10,565 

 
*Estimated losses from diverting water away from generators for the purpose of 
improving WQ. 

Sargent Charles Dam  
 
This dam continues to get routine safety inspections and appropriate maintenance. 
 
In October 2023, the dam was inspected by the state. In their report the dam is in 
satisfactory condition, the report listed some maintenance recommendations to 
help maintain a safe dam. Staff are reviewing the report for follow-up actions. 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

222 South Ford Boulevard, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 
Phone 734-544-4225          Fax 734-544-4195 

 
 
 

MONTHLY REPORT FOR JUNE 2024 
 
 
 

Fire Department staffing levels are as follows: 
 
 1 Fire Chief   1 Fire Marshall  3 Shift Captains 
      16 Fire Fighters  3 Shift Lieutenants  1 Clerk III/Staff Support 
 
 
 

 
All fire department response personnel are licensed as Emergency Medical Technicians by the 
State of Michigan Public Health. During the month, the fire department responded to 450 
requests for assistance. Of those requests, 262 were medical emergency service calls, with the 
remaining 188 incidents classified as non-medical and/or fire related. 

 

 
Department activities for the month of June 2024: 

1) Smoke Alarms 
a)  

 
 

 
2) Fire fighters received training in the following areas: 

a) Continuing Education Classes 
b) TRT Training held at Headquarters 

 

 
3) Pub Education 

a) Truck Demo @Huron Valley Pace 
b) Truck Demo @Rolling Hills Water Park 
c) Annual Bike Parade @Colony Way/Colony Ct 
d) Car Show @FLP 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Monthly Report – May 2024 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
 
 
The Fire Marshal had these activities / events for the month of June 2024: 

1. Fire Investigations:  2 
2. Fire Investigations interview: 
3. Fire Investigations follow up: 
4. Food Truck Development Program: 
5. Food Truck Inspections:  2 
6. Firework Tent Inspections:  2 
7. Building Inspections: 6  
8. Building Re-inspections:  
9. Liquor Inspections:· 
10. Junk Yard Inspections: 
11. Business Tour: 
12. Plan Reviews: 1 1  
13. Site Plan Reviews:  2 
14. Hood/ Fire Suppression Inspections:  4  
15. Meetings: 6 
16. Chief Meetings I attended: 2  
17. Zoom Meeting:  1 
18. Fire Alarm Inspections: 2 
17.Occupant Load Certificate 
18. Burn Permit: 3  
19. Burn Complaints:  4 
20. Knox Box: 2  
21. Fire Drills:  
22. Training: 1  
23. Business/Community Engagement: 3  
24. Citizen Engagement: 3 
25. Building Improvement project: 
26. New Construction Site Visit:  3 
27.Addressing: 
29. Code Research: Weekly 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Monthly Report – May 2024 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

The Fire Chief attended these meetings/ events for the month of June 2024: 
 

1. In house fire computer-based training purchased, waiting for log info to arrive 
2.  911 response 
3. Washtenaw county fire chiefs meeting 
4. LEPC meeting 
5. Station Three repair, working with BMS Catt 
6. Officers meeting-sog's 
7. Attend Township Board meeting 
8. Attend UASI Board meeting 
9. Current fire engines being rotated in for service 
10. New firefighters starting, LaChance & Stephens 
11. Box cards review emergent dispatch  
12. Chiefs meeting with emergent dispatch 
13. Attended Civil service meeting  
14. MSP EM Zoom call 
15. Fire Hose testing complete waiting on ladder testing 
16. Laptops ordered for station three 
17. Blink cameras ordered and delivered waiting on installments   
18. Waiting on test results back on Clark, Kay fire officer testing 
19. EMS Inspection on response vehicles 
20. Agency Inspection 
21. Working with Brindlee Mountain selling of two fire apparatus 
22. Current fire officers and firefighters signing up for County wide blue card training  
23. Hosted Washtenaw County Tech rescue training at YTFD (classroom) with field exercise at 

YCUA 
24. Fuel Tanks Inspection, State of Michigan underground storage tank division 
25. Sending firefighters out to different trainings in the county-mass casualty St. Joes Hospital 

 
 
 
 
There were O injuries, and O deaths reported this month for civilians. 
There were O injuries, and O deaths reported this month for fire 
fighters. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Monthly  Report – May 2024 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

This month the total fire loss, including vehicle fires, is estimated at $37,150.00. All occurred at the 
following locations: 

DATE OF LOSS ADDRESS ESTIMATED LOSS 
 
 

1)  06/01/2024 42684 Alba Ct $         0.00 (Mutual Aid-) 
2)  06/01/2024 Allen & MI Ave $   1,500.00 (Vehicle Fire) 
3) 06/06/2024 1427 Levona Street $      200.00 (Dumpster Fire) 
4) 5/04/2024 2811 Byna Drive $ 0.00 (Dumpster Fire) 
5) 5/07/2024 1516 Village Lane $ 0.00 (Dumpster Fire) 
6) 5/07/2024 Harry & Heatherridge $ 0.00 (Trash Fire) 
7) 5/12/2024 251 S Wallace Blvd $ 0.00 (Fire, other) 
8) 5/13/2024 Wiard & Ecorse $ 200.00 (Vehicle Fire) 
9) 5/14/2024 519 Villa Drive $      20,000.00 (Vehicle Fire) 
10)5/16/2024 Woodland & Bunton $ 0.00 (Vehicle Fire) 
11)5/17/2024 2501 International $        5,250.00 (Vehicle Fire) 
12)5/18/2024 1550 E Clark Road $          0.00 (Cooking Fire) 
13)5/18/2024 1361 Wendell Ave $ 10,000.00 (Vehicle Fire) 

 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted 
 
 
Maria Batianis 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Fire Department 

 
 
Attachment: Image Trend Incident Type Report (Summary): 6/01/2024 - 6 /30/2024



 



Elite ytfd Monthly Incident Report's 2024  

Basic Incident Type Code And
Description (FD1.21)

Total
Incidents

Total Incidents Percent of
Incidents

Total
Property

Loss

Total Content
Loss

Total Loss Total Loss Percent
of Total

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 1 - Fire

100 - Fire, other 1 0.22%     

111 - Building fire 1 0.22%     

113 - Cooking fire, confined to container 1 0.22% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

118 - Trash or rubbish fire, contained 1 0.22%     

131 - Passenger vehicle fire 6 1.33% 31,100.00 5,850.00 36,950.00 99.46%

138 - Off-road vehicle or heavy
equipment fire

1 0.22%     

140 - Natural vegetation fire, other 1 0.22%     

142 - Brush or brush-and-grass mixture
fire

1 0.22%     

154 - Dumpster or other outside trash
receptacle fire

3 0.67% 0.00 200.00 200.00 0.54%

171 - Cultivated grain or crop fire 1 0.22%     

 Total:  17 Total:  3.78% Total: 
31,100.00

Total: 
6,050.00

Total: 
37,150.00

Total:  100.00%

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 2 - Overpressure Rupture, Explosion, Overheat (No Fire)

200 - Overpressure rupture, explosion,
overheat, other

1 0.22%     

 Total:  1 Total:  0.22% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 3 - Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident

300 - Rescue, EMS incident, other 7 1.56%     

311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 98 21.78%     

320 - Emergency medical service, other 68 15.11%     

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle
accident with injury

65 14.44%     

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 8 1.78%     

323 - Motor vehicle/pedestrian accident
(MV Ped)

3 0.67%     

324 - Motor vehicle accident with no
injuries.

13 2.89%     

 Total:  262 Total:  58.22% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 4 - Hazardous Condition (No Fire)

400 - Hazardous condition, other 1 0.22%     

412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 2 0.44%     

424 - Carbon monoxide incident 2 0.44%     

440​ -​ Electrical​ ​ wiring/equipment​
problem,​ other

5 1.11%     

441 - Heat from short circuit (wiring),
defective/worn

1 0.22%     

444 - Power line down 7 1.56%     

445 - Arcing, shorted electrical
equipment

1 0.22%     

461 - Building or structure weakened or
collapsed

1 0.22%     

480 - Attempted burning, illegal action,
other

1 0.22%     

 Total:  21 Total:  4.67% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 5 - Service Call

500 - Service call, other 3 0.67%     

510 - Person in distress, other 1 0.22%     

550 - Public service assistance, other 1 0.22%     

551 - Assist police or other governmental
agency

3 0.67%     

552 - Police matter 1 0.22%     

561 - Unauthorized burning 8 1.78%     

 Total:  17 Total:  3.78% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%

Printed On: 07/01/2024 02:33:59 PM1 of 2



Basic Incident Type Code And
Description (FD1.21)

Total
Incidents

Total Incidents Percent of
Incidents

Total
Property

Loss

Total Content
Loss

Total Loss Total Loss Percent
of Total

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 6 - Good Intent Call

600 - Good intent call, other 1 0.22%     

611 - Dispatched and cancelled en route 86 19.11%     

622 - No incident found on arrival at
dispatch address

6 1.33%     

651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke 2 0.44%     

 Total:  95 Total:  21.11% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 7 - False Alarm & False Call

700 - False alarm or false call, other 16 3.56%     

715 - Local alarm system, malicious false
alarm

1 0.22%     

733 - Smoke detector activation due to
malfunction

5 1.11%     

735 - Alarm system sounded due to
malfunction

3 0.67%     

743 - Smoke detector activation, no fire -
unintentional

4 0.89%     

745 - Alarm system activation, no fire -
unintentional

3 0.67%     

746 - Carbon monoxide detector
activation, no CO

5 1.11%     

 Total:  37 Total:  8.22% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%

 Total:  450 Total:  100.00% Total: 
31,100.00

Total: 
6,050.00

Total: 
37,150.00

Total:  100.00%

Printed On: 07/01/2024 02:33:59 PM2 of 2



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Jimmie Wilson Jr 

Date:   July 8, 2024 

To:   Clerk’s Office 

CC:   Brenda Stumbo, Supervisor 

From: Michael Saranen, Operation Manager 

      
Subject: Department Report (activities in June 2024)  

 

Activities: 

Ford Lake Dam (Hydro Station) 
 

General Operation Summary: 
The Hydro Station is operating safely and continues to get routine safety inspections 
and preventive maintenance. Operators had 1 after-hour call-in for the month.  
 
Average precipitation for the month of is around 3.26”, this year it just above normal 
at 3.83”.  

 
Regulatory Status: 
  

For 2024- 
- DSSMR- Complete, Filed with FERC 
- Owners Dam Safety Program Review - Complete 
- EAP annual update and test -  
- EAP First Responder Training - Complete 
- WQ Report – Equipment deployed gathering data 
- Nuisance Plant Plan Report - Started 
- Wildlife Plan Report -  
- Historical Activity Report - 
- Gate Certification -  
- Security Review - Started 
- FERC Security Inspection - TBD 
- FERC Annual Dam Safety Inspection – Complete  
- Annual DEQ Lake Operation Monitoring Report- Complete 
- Spillway Assessment Action Plan - Filed, addressing comments by FERC, Ongoing 
- Public Safety Plan - Installing new safety signs in 2024 
- Fish & Sediment Analysis - Not required until 2033 
- Part 12 Comprehensive Analysis Inspection – Started, getting proposals 

 



 

Future Items: 
 

- Shoreline Restoration, Ford Lake Park 
- PMF Study for watershed – Discussing  
- Shoreline Erosion Survey – 2025 
- Protective Relay testing – 2024 
- Emergency Gen Testing – 2025 
- Concrete repairs – On Hold 
- Windows/additional concrete repairs (powerhouse and dam) - TBD 
- EAP Tabletop and Functional Exercise – 2024, July 
- EAP Rewrite - 2025 

 
 

Projects: 
 
Concrete Repairs- Delayed, approved by the Board to go out to bid. Construction was 
planned for summer 2023, however the cost came in doubled and the project will be 
rebid in coming months.  
 
Sluice Gate Stress Analysis- 2024, the FERC has requested a detailed study of the 
spillway gates. This is a common industry request from FERC as they continuously 
look at safety involving dams. We are currently working with engineering to develop 
a procedure to complete this task. Awarded, Start in July 
 
Turbine Inspections and Maintenance- Conduct cleaning, inspection and 
maintenance on turbine equipment and associated spaces. #2 was inspected and 
found to be satisfactory. #1 is planned in the 1st quarter of the year. Delayed 
 
 
Operation Summary 

 
2024 June YTD 5 Year Ave. 

Precipitation total (inches)1 3.83 14.22 38.0 
Days Online 30 183 359.4 

Generation MWH (estimated) 384.075 6,310.606 10,469.1 
Generation MWH lost (estimated)* 152.112 223.230 515.6 

    
After Hour Call In    

Water levels 0 10 38 
Mechanical/Electrical 1 4 4 

Other 0 0 2 
Totals 1 14 43 

 
 
 



 

 
 
 

Recent History 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 
Precipitation total 

(inches) 
45.4 41.4 40.0 26.37 36.65 

Days Online 350.6 359.7 360.0 363.5 363.4 
Generation MWH 

(estimated) 
12,576.7 10,722.7 10,524.5 9,185.151 9,336.397 

Generation MWH lost 
(estimated)* 

1,005.8 570.2 423.2 362.5 216.076 

      
After Hour Call In      

Water levels 30 69 33 36 22 
Mechanical/Electrical 3 4 9 0 3 

Other 0 2 0 4 2 
Totals 33 75 42 40 27 

 
 
1 Preliminary totals from NOAA for Detroit  
*losses related to scheduled & unscheduled maintenance and water quality 
discharges. 

 
Water Quality Summary: 
MOU with City of Ann Arbor 
The Parties share a common interest in eliminating and preventing nuisance blue 
green algae blooms in Ford and Belleville Lakes, and they acknowledge that 
information about water quality and conditions in the lakes is important to advancing 
their common interest. THEREFORE, the Parties enter into this Memorandum of 
Understanding to memorialize their understanding as to their efforts to cooperate and 
work together to monitor, collect, and share water quality information regarding Ford 
and Belleville Lakes. 
 
Work Plan 

- MOU has been signed, for 2024 the current plan is to gather WQ data for future use. 
- Additional activities may be identified in the coming months. 

Current Activities 
- WQ lake buoy has been deployed and is gathering data. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Sluice Gate Usage Summary 
Releasing water from the sluice gates is primary done to maintain lake level when flow 
exceeds the powerhouse. At certain times, we can use the gates to help keep the lake 
mixed to maintain oxygen levels (effectiveness depends on a number of factors) at the 
bottom of the lake. 
 
The water quality monitoring begins on June 1st and will end on September 30th; 
operators monitor the water quality conditions and take readings as outline in the WQ 
Plan. The dam releases water from the bottom gates to maintain run of river and/or 
help with water quality in Ford Lake. The Federal License requires us to pass water 
with a minimum of 5mg/l of dissolved oxygen all the time.  Therefore, spilling from the 
bottom gates in the summer to improve the lake is not always possible. 
 

            Current Year       Current Year  Current Year     Current Year    Prior Yr. 
2024 Days Spilled         Lost KWh*      Lost KW$*        Lost KW$* 
January 7.6 0 0 0 
February 11.4 0 0 0 
March .4 0 0 0 
April 8.75 0 0 0 
May 9.1 39,205 $ 1,628 $ 1,597 
June 21.7 152,112  $ 9,386 $ 8,241 
July    $ 373 
August    $ 268 
September    $ 86 
October    0 
November    0 
December    0 
Totals 37.25 191,317 $ 11,014     $ 10,565 

 
*Estimated losses from diverting water away from generators for the purpose of 
improving WQ. 

Sargent Charles Dam  
 
This dam continues to get routine safety inspections and appropriate maintenance. 
 
In October 2023, the dam was inspected by the state. In their report the dam is in 
satisfactory condition, the report listed some maintenance recommendations to 
help maintain a safe dam. Staff are reviewing the report for follow-up actions. 
 
 









June 2024 Monthly Summary of Offenses for Ypsilanti Twp (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

Search Criteria: (This report counts for offenses but excludes UCR status of 'Unfounded'.)

Month: June

Year: 2024

City: Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

Page 1 of 5 Created On 07/09/2024 12:03 PM



June 2024 Monthly Summary of Offenses for Ypsilanti Twp (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description Jun/2024 Jun/2023 % CHG YTD 2024 YTD 2023 % CHG Jun/2024 YTD Jun/2023 YTD Jun YTD

09001 MURDER/NONNEGLIGENT MANSLAUGHTER

(VOLUNTARY)

0 2 -100% 5 3 66.66% 0 4 0 0 0 4

09002 NEGLIGENT HOMICIDE/MANSLAUGHTER

(INVOLUNTARY)

0 0 0% 2 1 100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

10001 KIDNAPPING/ABDUCTION 2 0 0% 5 6 -16.6% 0 0 0 0 0 0

10002 PARENTAL KIDNAPPING 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11001 SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC lST

DEGREE

2 0 0% 20 8 150% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11002 SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC 3RD

DEGREE

2 2 0% 6 5 20% 0 1 0 0 0 1

11003 SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC lST

DEGREE

2 0 0% 4 1 300% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11004 SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC 3RD

DEGREE

0 0 0% 1 2 -50% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11005 SEXUAL PENETRATION OBJECT -CSC IST DEGREE 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11007 SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 2ND DEGREE 1 2 -50% 9 5 80% 1 1 0 0 1 1

11008 SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 4TH DEGREE 0 1 -100% 7 7 0% 0 2 0 0 0 2

12000 ROBBERY 6 2 200% 12 7 71.42% 2 3 0 1 2 4

12001 ROBBERY 1 0 0% 1 3 -66.6% 0 0 0 0 0 0

13001 NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 38 41 -7.31% 181 221 -18.0% 13 55 0 2 13 57

13002 AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 26 21 23.80% 161 162 -0.61% 12 64 0 3 12 67

13003 INTIMIDATION/STALKING 7 7 0% 48 46 4.347% 3 10 0 0 3 10

20000 ARSON 1 0 0% 5 0 0% 0 2 0 0 0 2

21000 EXTORTION 0 2 -100% 7 11 -36.3% 0 0 0 0 0 0

22001 BURGLARY -FORCED ENTRY 4 9 -55.5% 33 42 -21.4% 1 4 0 0 1 4

22002 BURGLARY -ENTRY WITHOUT FORCE (Intent to

Commit)

5 4 25% 16 13 23.07% 0 0 0 1 0 1

23001 LARCENY -POCKETPICKING 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

23002 LARCENY -PURSESNATCHING 1 0 0% 2 2 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Page 2 of 5 Created On 07/09/2024 12:03 PM



June 2024 Monthly Summary of Offenses for Ypsilanti Twp (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description Jun/2024 Jun/2023 % CHG YTD 2024 YTD 2023 % CHG Jun/2024 YTD Jun/2023 YTD Jun YTD

23003 LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 2 7 -71.4% 47 48 -2.08% 0 4 0 0 0 4

23005 LARCENY -THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE 8 44 -81.8% 64 114 -43.8% 0 1 0 2 0 3

23006 LARCENY -THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE

PARTS/ACCESSORIES

0 3 -100% 11 21 -47.6% 0 1 0 0 0 1

23007 LARCENY -OTHER 10 12 -16.6% 41 46 -10.8% 1 3 0 1 1 4

24001 MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 15 16 -6.25% 83 58 43.10% 0 2 0 2 0 4

24002 MOTOR VEHICLE, AS STOLEN PROPERTY 1 2 -50% 8 10 -20% 0 1 1 5 1 6

25000 FORGERY/COUNTERFEITING 7 0 0% 13 10 30% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26001 FRAUD -FALSE PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE

GAME

4 7 -42.8% 25 41 -39.0% 0 2 0 0 0 2

26002 FRAUD -CREDIT CARD/AUTOMATIC TELLER

MACHINE

1 6 -83.3% 13 30 -56.6% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26005 FRAUD -WIRE FRAUD 1 2 -50% 9 6 50% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26007 FRAUD - IDENTITY THEFT 1 6 -83.3% 18 49 -63.2% 0 0 0 0 0 0

27000 EMBEZZLEMENT 0 1 -100% 2 8 -75% 0 0 0 0 0 0

28000 STOLEN PROPERTY 3 4 -25% 13 14 -7.14% 1 2 1 1 2 3

29000 DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 21 27 -22.2% 142 167 -14.9% 0 5 0 0 0 5

30001 RETAIL FRAUD -MISREPRESENTATION 0 1 -100% 0 5 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

30002 RETAIL FRAUD -THEFT 3 9 -66.6% 25 43 -41.8% 0 2 0 1 0 3

35001 VIOLATION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE ACT 9 7 28.57% 44 60 -26.6% 6 18 0 0 6 18

35002 NARCOTIC EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS 4 0 0% 10 10 0% 1 2 0 0 1 2

37000 OBSCENITY 1 1 0% 4 5 -20% 0 0 0 0 0 0

51000 BRIBERY 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

52001 WEAPONS OFFENSE- CONCEALED 13 9 44.44% 50 60 -16.6% 8 23 1 4 9 27

52003 WEAPONS OFFENSE -OTHER 3 4 -25% 14 24 -41.6% 0 0 0 0 0 0

72000 ANIMAL CRUELTY 5 0 0% 8 6 33.33% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group A Totals 210 261 -19.5% 1173 1380 -15% 49 212 3 23 52 235

22003 BURGLARY - UNLAWFUL ENTRY (NO INTENT) 0 1 -100% 0 2 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

22004 POSSESSION OF BURGLARY TOOLS 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Page 3 of 5 Created On 07/09/2024 12:03 PM



June 2024 Monthly Summary of Offenses for Ypsilanti Twp (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description Jun/2024 Jun/2023 % CHG YTD 2024 YTD 2023 % CHG Jun/2024 YTD Jun/2023 YTD Jun YTD

26006 FRAUD -BAD CHECKS 2 1 100% 4 4 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

36004 SEX OFFENSE -OTHER 1 0 0% 5 3 66.66% 0 1 0 0 0 1

38001 FAMILY -ABUSE/NEGLECT NONVIOLENT 9 7 28.57% 31 30 3.333% 0 4 0 0 0 4

38002 FAMILY -NONSUPPORT 0 0 0% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

38003 FAMILY -OTHER 0 0 0% 1 2 -50% 0 0 0 0 0 0

41002 LIQUOR VIOLATIONS -OTHER 0 3 -100% 5 7 -28.5% 0 0 0 0 0 0

48000 OBSTRUCTING POLICE 17 16 6.25% 100 92 8.695% 5 19 1 5 6 24

49000 ESCAPE/FLIGHT 0 0 0% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

50000 OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 15 20 -25% 109 123 -11.3% 3 41 1 1 4 42

53001 DISORDERLY CONDUCT 1 2 -50% 5 7 -28.5% 0 1 0 0 0 1

53002 PUBLIC PEACE -OTHER 0 0 0% 4 3 33.33% 0 1 0 0 0 1

54001 HIT and RUN MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

54002 OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF LIQUOR

OR DRUGS

8 18 -55.5% 88 81 8.641% 7 68 0 1 7 69

55000 HEALTH AND SAFETY 5 3 66.66% 20 19 5.263% 0 0 0 0 0 0

57001 TRESPASS 1 1 0% 8 14 -42.8% 1 2 0 0 1 2

58000 SMUGGLING 0 0 0% 1 1 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

63000 VAGRANCY 0 0 0% 1 1 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

70000 JUVENILE RUNAWAY 11 6 83.33% 50 30 66.66% 0 0 0 0 0 0

73000 MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL OFFENSE 12 3 300% 33 13 153.8% 0 0 0 0 0 0

75000 SOLICITATION 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group B Totals 82 81 1.234% 468 434 7.834% 16 137 2 7 18 144

2800 JUVENILE OFFENSES AND COMPLAINTS 45 28 60.71% 193 128 50.78% 0 0 0 0 0 0

2900 TRAFFIC OFFENSES 21 19 10.52% 91 121 -24.7% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3000 WARRANTS 34 27 25.92% 187 223 -16.1% 19 107 0 3 19 110

3100 TRAFFIC CRASHES 74 100 -26% 572 638 -10.3% 0 1 0 0 0 1

3200 SICK / INJURY COMPLAINT 240 238 0.840% 1349 1274 5.886% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3300 MISCELLANEOUS COMPLAINTS 831 801 3.745% 4719 4512 4.587% 0 2 0 0 0 2

Page 4 of 5 Created On 07/09/2024 12:03 PM



June 2024 Monthly Summary of Offenses for Ypsilanti Twp (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description Jun/2024 Jun/2023 % CHG YTD 2024 YTD 2023 % CHG Jun/2024 YTD Jun/2023 YTD Jun YTD

3400 WATERCRAFT COMPLAINTS / ACCIDENTS 1 3 -66.6% 1 5 -80% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3500 NON - CRIMINAL COMPLAINTS 844 926 -8.85% 5636 5397 4.428% 0 0 1 4 1 4

3700 MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC COMPLAINTS 949 1036 -8.39% 6375 6475 -1.54% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3800 ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 110 71 54.92% 528 458 15.28% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3900 ALARMS 85 110 -22.7% 672 655 2.595% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group C Totals 3234 3359 -3.72% 20323 19886 2.197% 19 110 1 7 20 117

4000 HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 1 1 0% 5 2 150% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4100 NON-HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 0 1 -100% 2 3 -33.3% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4200 PARKING CITATIONS 1 0 0% 3 6 -50% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4300 LICENSE / TITLE / REGISTRATION CITATIONS 0 0 0% 3 2 50% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4500 MISCELLANEOUS A THROUGH UUUU 25 30 -16.6% 149 110 35.45% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4600 LIQUOR CITATIONS / SUMMONS 0 0 0% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group D Totals 27 32 -15.6% 162 124 30.64% 0 0 0 0 0 0

5000 FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group E Totals 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6000 MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6000) 54 39 38.46% 278 232 19.82% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6100 MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6100) 97 98 -1.02% 529 516 2.519% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6300 CANINE ACTIVITIES 0 0 0% 12 31 -61.2% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6500 CRIME PREVENTION ACTIVITIES 7 11 -36.3% 34 36 -5.55% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6600 COURT / WARRANT ACTIVITIES 0 1 -100% 1 12 -91.6% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6700 INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITIES 62 43 44.18% 278 259 7.335% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group F Totals 220 192 14.58% 1132 1086 4.235% 0 0 0 0 0 0

City : Ypsilanti Twp Totals 3773 3925 -3.87% 23259 22910 1.523% 84 459 6 37 90 496

Page 5 of 5 Created On 07/09/2024 12:03 PM



 
 
 
 
 

 

 2201 Hogback Road ◆ Ann Arbor, Michigan  48105-9732 ◆ OFFICE  (734) 971-8400 ◆ FAX  (734) 973-4624 ◆ EMAIL  sheriffinfo@ewashtenaw.org 

JERRY L. CLAYTON MARK A. PTASZEK 

 SHERIFF   UNDERSHERIFF 

 

Co Creating Community Wellness and Safety – Providing Exemplary Service  
Building Strong and Sustainable Communities 

Serving Washtenaw County since 1823 

To: Brenda Stumbo, Ypsilanti Township Supervisor 
From: Chad Teets, Police Services Lieutenant 
Cc: Ypsilanti Township Board  
 Keith Flores, WCSO Police Services Commander  
 Nancy Hansen, WCSO Police Services Captain 
Date: July 9, 2024 
Re: June 2024 Police Services Monthly Report 
 
SUMMARY: 
During the month of June 2024, there were 3,516 calls for service in Ypsilanti Township. In June 2023, 
there were 3,627 calls for service in Ypsilanti Township. 
 
OPERATIONS 
During June 2024, Patrol Operations responded to calls for service, conducted traffic enforcement, and 
completed criminal investigations in support of our citizen’s quality of life. 
 
In the month of June 2024 there were 8 home invasions, which is a 0% change as compared to June 
2023 (8 home invasions). In many of these incidents domestic relationships and unauthorized entry 
were common. The best prevention methods for a typical residential home invasion are to keep all 
windows and doors locked (including vehicles in the driveway), including deadbolts, while away from 
home. External lighting and visual deterrents such as “Beware of Dog” or alarm signage also discourages 
criminals. 
 
In the month of June 2024 there were 0 breaking and entering. In the month of June 2023, we saw 4 
breaking and entering’s (400% decrease).   
 
In June 2024 there were 15 reported UDAA’s. This is an 6% decrease compared to June 2023 where 
there were 16 reported UDAA’s. Many of these vehicle thefts occurred by the suspect gaining entry to 
an unlocked vehicle. Citizens are reminded to lock all vehicle doors and keep ignition keys in separate 
and secure areas to prevent such thefts. Valuables, if left in a vehicle, should be placed in a concealed 
location. Many vehicles that are being targeted are Hyundai and Kia makes due to well-known theft 
practices. The following website provides further information regarding the reduction of potential for 
theft of your vehicle, common vehicles targeted, and further information. 
  
 https://www.nhtsa.gov/road-safety/vehicle-theft-prevention  
 
YOUTH INITIATIVE 
The Sheriff’s Office continues to partner with courts, probation, and social services to ensure that there 
is accountability beyond the Sheriff’s Office contact with the offenders that are consistently involved in 
crimes.  From a year-to-year perspective, comparing 2024 to 2023, our juvenile offenses and complaints 
are up 60.7% (from 28 to 45) and our runaway complaints are up 83.3% (from 6 to 11).  
 

https://www.nhtsa.gov/road-safety/vehicle-theft-prevention


 
 
 
 
 

 

 2201 Hogback Road ◆ Ann Arbor, Michigan  48105-9732 ◆ OFFICE  (734) 971-8400 ◆ FAX  (734) 973-4624 ◆ EMAIL  sheriffinfo@ewashtenaw.org 

JERRY L. CLAYTON MARK A. PTASZEK 

 SHERIFF   UNDERSHERIFF 
 

Co Creating Community Wellness – Providing Exemplary Service  
Building Strong and Sustainable Communities 

Serving Washtenaw County since 1823 
 

 
 
COMMUNITY ACTION TEAM   
The purpose of the Community Action Team (CAT) is to respond to situations involving or with a nexus 
of drugs, guns, or violence.  The team focuses on the timely assessment and response to tips they 
receive from our community and community problems identified through crime pattern analysis.  
 
CAT collaboration with the Michigan Department of Corrections in reference to parole compliance 
contributes to effective monitoring and management of parolees who live in our community.  Timely 
and efficient response to tips regarding parolee misconduct combined with regular unannounced home 
visits are expected by the parolees that reside in Ypsilanti Township and surrounding areas.  
 
For any violent crime tips related to guns, gang activity or violence in general please call 734-661-9034. 
 
CLEMIS ONLINE REPORTING 
Citizens can now fill out a police report online utilizing CLEMIS’ new “online reporting tool”. Citizens can 
visit: https://www.washtenaw.org/3439/File-a-Police-Report to fill out an online report.  
 
WASHTENAW ALERT (EVERBRIDGE) 
As a reminder for residents they can sign up for “Up-to-the-minute updates” from the Washtenaw 
County Sheriff’s Office by email or cell phone at www.washtenaw.org/alerts 
 
HOUSE WATCH 
If you plan on being gone for a period of time sign your house up for house checks.  The house watch 
form can be found at:  https://www.washtenaw.org/1743/House-Watch 
 
NEW FACES 
The Sheriff’s Office is hiring!  We continue to hire highly qualified, motivated, and diverse people that 
are committed to pursuing our mission:  Creating public safety, providing quality service, and building 
strong and sustainable communities.   
 
If you are interested in joining us in serving your community in Police Services, Corrections, 
Communications, Emergency Services or Community Corrections please check us out at:  
https://www.washtenaw.org/1124/Sheriff 
 
We have rewarding career opportunities available for those seeking a profession with a greater purpose. 
 

 

 

https://www.washtenaw.org/3439/File-a-Police-Report
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.washtenaw.org%2Falerts&data=02%7C01%7Cteetsc%40washtenaw.org%7Cf8689bdf108a4ba6257308d83e23fdd1%7C940f79927c85414e8cb10632dd3a5282%7C1%7C0%7C637327671714166397&sdata=ntMVps2wVcbhpVaG5pYdrMlGoG%2Bud83w%2FPLXC0iO9%2FQ%3D&reserved=0
https://www.washtenaw.org/1743/House-Watch
https://www.washtenaw.org/1124/Sheriff


YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP MONTHLY POLICE SERVICES DATA

June 2024

Traffic Stops 886 912 -3% 5615 5714 -2%

Citations 122 185 -34% 1011 1512 -33%

Drunk Driving (OWI) 7 10 -30% 48 62 -23%

Drugged Driving (OUID) 0 6 - 21 14 50%

Calls for Service Total 3516 3627 -3% 21016 21474 -2%

Calls for Service                  
(Traffic stops and non-response 

medicals removed)

2247 2263 -1% 12685 12782 -1%

Robberies 6 2 200% 12 10 20%

Assaultive Crimes 64 56 14% 346 384 -10%

Home Invasions 8 8 0% 37 45 -18%

Breaking and Entering’s 0 4 - 6 9 -33%

Larcenies 21 66 -68% 158 231 -32%

Vehicle Thefts 15 16 -6% 85 60 42%

Traffic Crashes 57 69 -17% 400 480 -17%

Medical Assists 58 50 16% 310 289 7%

Animal Complaints           
(ACO Response)

77 52 48% 305 344 -11%

In/Out of Area Time Month 
(minutes)

YTD 
(minutes)

Into Area Time 937 8463

Out of Area Time 1183 6992

Investigative Ops (DB) 38,445 207200

Secondary Road Patrol 2195 5638

County Wide 750 3230

Hours 

Accum.

Hours 

Used
Balance

Banked Hours 1248 TBD 1986.25

+ = Positive Change                                                    

- = Negative Change

%    

Change
Incidents

Month 

2024

Month 

2023

%    

Change

YTD       

2024

YTD       

2023



 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 18, 2024 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

 
Supervisor Brenda Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 6:00pm in 
the Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, 
Ypsilanti Township. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited followed by a moment of 
silent prayer. 
 
Members Present:  Supervisor Brenda Stumbo, Clerk Heather Jarrell Roe, and 

Treasurer Stan Eldridge 
Trustees: John Newman II, Gloria Peterson, Debbie Swanson, 
and Ryan Hunter  

 
Members Absent:   none 
                    
Legal Counsel:   Wm. Douglas Winters  
 
Steven Densmore, Fire Chief explained on April 14, 2024 they responded to a fire 
where two sheriff deputies were already on the scene and in the doorway of the 
burning home reaching in trying to locate the person or persons in the house. Chief 
stated fortunately there was only one victim in the house who was brought out 
with the help from the deputies and along with HVA they stated media life efforts 
to bring the victim back. He said with the extraordinary risk that was done to save 
this woman we are recognizing the two Washtenaw County Deputy Phillips and 
Deputy Lyons with a Certificate of a Life Saving. Chief stated the resident of the 
home is currently in a rehab center and is improving every day. Chief stated that 
Captain Raglin took over life saving efforts until HVA arrived. Chief stated they 
were told there may be other victims in the home so Lieutenant Rollen went into 
the structure looking for others and fortunately there were no other victims in the 
home. Chief Densmore recognized both Captain Raglin and Lieutenant Rollen with 
a Certificate of a Life Saving. Chief Densmore stated they have different shifts or 
different units that come across from the other two stations who helped with 
putting this fire out. Chief stated they will have a Unit Citation that will be hung up 
in the station. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated she would like an agenda item added under Other 
Business a request authorization to approve change order #2 for the Ford Lake Park 
shelter improvement as part of the ARPA fund. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 18, 2024 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 2 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
A. MINUTES OF THE MAY 21, 2024 REGULAR MEETING AND CLOSED SESSION 

 
B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS  

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR JUNE 4, 2024 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,348,145.49 

2.  STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR JUNE 18, 2024 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$514,466.16 

3. CLARITY HEALTHCARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH EFT FOR MAY 2024 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $70,123.69 

4. CLARITY HEALTHCARE DEDUCTIBLE ADMIN FEE FOR MAY 2024 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $1,620.83    

 
5. TREASURERS’ REPORT MAY 2024 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Trustee Peterson to 
approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 
Attorney Winters stated there are several important infrastructure projects that 
have been authorized by the board. He said Director Hines continues to work with 
various engineering groups as well as trying to attend to other duties he has. He 
said has been a very challenging summer trying to get the projects lined up. 
 
Attorney Winters updated on the Carport issue. He said the carport was damaged 
by a high wind event in March of 2023.  He said our insurance initially issued a 
check for $77,000.00. The low bid for this project was $414,000.00. Attorney 
Winters stated they have met with various engineers and the insurance people 
trying to get a better settlement. He said after the follow up meeting in May the 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 18, 2024 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 3 
 
insurance company notified the Township that they were going to increase their 
settlement offer to $217,000.00 which since we already received $77,000.00 the 
check would be for about $140,000.00. He said the money has been received. 
 
Attorney Winters stated there are several nuisance lawsuits that are ongoing. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. RESOLUTION 2024-08, REGARDING THE TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE OF 
MARY CATHERINE ST. FOR THE WEST WILLOW FARMERS MARKET BLOCK 
PARTY 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to 
approve Resolution 2024-08, regarding the temporary road closure of Mary 
Catherine St. for the West Willow Farmers Market Block Party (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

2. RESOLUTION 2024-09, REGARDING THE TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE OF 
PACKARD RD. FOR PEACENIC YPSILANTI-YPSILANTI CHARTER TOWNSHIP  

 
A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Trustee Peterson to 
approve Resolution 2024-09, regarding the temporary road closure of Packard Rd. 
for Peacenic Ypsilanti-Ypsilanti Charter Township (see attached).    
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. REQUEST TO SELL A BRINDLEE MOUNTAIN FIRE APPARATUS  
 

A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Treasury Eldridge to 
approve Request to sell a Brindlee Mountain Fire Apparatus (see attached).    
 
Fire Chief Densmore explained the process of selling outdated fire apparatus. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 18, 2024 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 4 
 

4. REQUEST TO APPROVE CHANGE ORDER #1 WITH NORTHGATE 
CONSTRUCTION FOR THE GREEN OAKS GOLF COURSE BATHROOM 
RENOVATIONS IN THE AMOUNT OF $17,750.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#101-902-981-100            
 

A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Trustee Swanson to 
approve change order #1 with Northgate Construction for the Green Oaks Golf 
Course bathroom renovations in the amount of $17,750.00 budgeted in Line Item 
#101-902-981-100 (see attached).   
 
John Hines, Municipal Services Director explained the renovations at the golf 
course.                         
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

5. BUDGET AMENDEMENT #8   
 
Clerk Jarrell Roe read Budget Amendment #8. 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to 
approve Budget Amendment #8.  
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

AUTHORIZATION AND BIDS 
 

1. REQUEST APPROVAL TO SEEK SEALED BIDS FOR PLAYGROUND SURFACE 
REPLACEMENT AT FORD HERITAGE PARK  
 

A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to 
request approval to seek bids for playground surface replacement at Ford Heritage 
Park. 
 
John Hines, Municipal Services Director explained the process in replacing the 
playground surface at Ford Heritage Park.  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 18, 2024 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 5 
 
Trustee Swanson questioned why they would not be replacing under the swings 
with wood chips. She stated when they constructed the park they took great care 
to make it accessible and wants the same care to be given when it is being 
replaced. 
 
Clerk Jarrell Roe stated she had been to parks that patched up areas on their play 
area instead of resurfacing the entire area. 
 
Trustee Swanson suggested they get quotes for both ways to fix the playground in 
case the bid comes back too high to replace the entire area. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

2. REQUEST TO SEEK SEALED BIDS FOR SANITARY WATER LINE SITE WORK 
AND RESTROOM DEMOLITION AT FORD HERITAGE PARK AND SITE WORK 
AND PAVILION INSTALLATION AT LAKESIDE PARK           
 

A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to 
seek sealed bids for sanitary water line site work and restroom demolition at Ford 
Heritage Park and site work and pavilion installation at Lakeside Park. 
 
John Hines, Municipal Services Director explained the process for work that will be 
done at both Ford Heritage and Lakeside Parks. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. REQUEST TO AUTHORIZE AND APPROVE CHANGE ORDER NUMBER TWO 
FOR PARK SHELTER IMPROVEMENTS 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Trustee Peterson to 
authorize and approve change order number two for park shelter improvements. 
 
John Hines, Municipal Services Director explained the process for park shelter 
improvements. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 18, 2024 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 6 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was one public comment. 
 

BOARD MEMBER UPDATE 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated the Ridge Road sidewalk project is close to completion. 
She said the senior wing at the Community Center should be done soon. Supervisor 
Stumbo stated the residents have called to let us know they love the new signs at 
the parks. She said the Jazz festival will begin on July 5th. Supervisor Stumbo stated 
they will use grant funds to purchase some golf carts for events at the park. 
 
Treasurer Eldridge stated the property taxes are coming out. He said there were 
some L-49 forms from the schools that were not correct and not submitted in a 
timely manner. Treasurer Eldridge would like to receive the L-49 forms by June 1st 
each year so they can get the correct tax bills out by the deadline of July 1st. 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and seconded by Clerk Jarrell Roe to 
Adjourn. 
  
The motion carried unanimously. 
                                             
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:26 pm. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



































Account Name Beginning Balance Cash Receipts Cash Disbursements Ending Balance
101 - General Fund 17,090,199.18 3,049,900.24 2,660,991.64 17,479,107.78
101 - Payroll 224,336.89 1,019,240.12 1,038,961.31 204,615.70
101 - Willow Run Escrow 146,491.34 48.03 0.00 146,539.37
206 - Fire Department 6,049,811.83 205,682.79 514,028.31 5,741,466.31
208 - Parks Fund 16,699.20 68.31 403.69 16,363.82
213 - Roads/Bike Path/Rec/General Fund 2,641,368.53 86,614.94 214,928.09 2,513,055.38
216 - Fire Pension & OPEB  Millage Fund 1,514,668.73 57,917.84 0.00 1,572,586.57
217 - Fire Special Millage Capital Fund 209,175.09 860.27 3,221.75 206,813.61
226 - Environmental Services 3,905,592.21 194,292.95 248,507.86 3,851,377.30
230 - Recreation 304,374.79 47,289.52 75,666.00 275,998.31
236 - 14-B District Court 226,016.37 77,422.97 129,924.64 173,514.70
244 - Economic Development 76,637.57 318.06 0.00 76,955.63
249 - Building Department Fund 1,613,702.08 62,316.00 63,393.12 1,612,624.96
250 - LDFA Tax 96,559.85 401.31 0.00 96,961.16
252 - Hydro Station Fund 1,253,548.64 58,524.12 33,611.94 1,278,460.82
266 - Law Enforcement Fund 16,119,606.99 412,235.14 667,431.59 15,864,410.54
282 - Cares Act Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
284 - Opioid Settlement Fund 26,475.47 22,725.24 0.00 49,200.71
287 - Nuisance Abatement Fund 54,771.85 3,781.81 1,585.00 56,968.66
398 - LDFA 2006 Bonds 86.23 0.00 0.00 86.23
584 - Green Oaks Golf Course 279,138.98 127,179.89 85,449.55 320,869.32
597 - Compost Site 860,333.22 44,046.10 42,906.95 861,472.37
661 - Motor Pool 247,657.58 1,057.42 6,781.14 241,933.86
702 - General Tax Collection 105,325.40 10,361.79 11,484.27 104,202.92
703 - Current Tax Collections 29,235.40 7.84 0.00 29,243.24
707 - Bonds & Escrow/GreenTop 1,900,384.61 15,600.48 161,810.50 1,754,174.59
708 - Fire Withholding Bonds 85,915.49 28.17 0.00 85,943.66
GRAND  TOTAL 55,078,113.52 5,497,921.35 5,961,087.35 54,614,947.52

MONTHLY TREASURER'S REPORT
STAN ELDRIDGE

JUNE 1, 2024 - JUNE 30, 2024



 

ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 

 



 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 



June 27, 2024 

VIA EMAIL 

Ms. Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  
7200 South Huron River Drive  
Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197 

Re:  Water and Sewer Rate Changes 

Dear Ms. Jarrell Roe: 

Please be advised the Authority’s Board of Commissioners approved a 3.07% water and readiness-to-
serve rate increase at their regular meeting on June 26, 2024.  The Ypsilanti Township Utilities Ordinance 
authorizes the Authority’s Board to increase the water rate equally commensurate with the increase it receives 
from the Great Lakes Water Authority (GLWA).  GLWA’s increase to the Authority was 3.07% which will 
become effective on July 1, 2024.  Please consider this as the Township’s notice of the increase in the water 
and readiness-to-serve rate which becomes effective September 1, 2024. Please find enclosed the requisite 
materials needed for the adoption of this ordinance. 

At the same meeting, the Authority’s Board approved a recommendation to the Township Board of 
Trustees to increase the sewer and readiness to serve rate by 2.00%.  The ordinance needed to approve the 
increase is attached as well as the supporting documentation.  The combined effect of these rate adjustments 
will be a 2.65% increase in a Township Division customer’s bimonthly bill. 

Please place this item on the Township Trustees’ agenda for their consideration at the July 16 and 
August 20, 2024, meetings.  Please also forward the supporting material attached for their use in considering 
this ordinance adoption request.  Please contact me with any questions or concerns regarding this information 
by email at lblackburn@ycua.org or by phone at 734-484-4600 ext. 116. 

Sincerely,

LUTHER BLACKBURN, Executive Director 
Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority 

Enclosures 
cc w/encl.: YCUA Board of Commissioners 

Ms. Brenda L. Stumbo 
Ms. Lisa Stanfield 
Mr. Stan Eldridge 
Mr. Matthew T. Jane 
Mr. Dwayne Harrigan 
Ms. Gail M. Thomas 



YCUA Township Division

water sewer Total
Current

Ready to Service $17.40 $18.17 $35.58
Commodity rate (per unit) $3.76 $2.99 $6.75

Average User residential
10 units(7,480 gallons) per 2 month billing cycle
water sewer Total

Ready to Service $17.40 $18.17 $35.58
10 units $37.62 $29.90 $67.52

Total $55.02 $48.08 $103.10

Effect on average Township customers with a proposed 3.07% water rate increase, a

sewer rate increase of 2.00%. Combined effect 2.57%

water sewer Total
PROPOSED: September 1, 2024

Ready to Service 3.1% 17.94$ 18.54$ $36.47
Commodity rate (per unit) 2.0% 3.88$ 3.05$ $6.93

Average User residential (proposed)
10 units(7,480 gallons) per 2 month billing cycle

water sewer Total
Ready to Service $17.94 $18.54 $36.47
10 units $38.78 $30.50 $69.28

Total $56.71 $49.04 $105.75

Increase in bill 2.65$

Percent Change 3.07% 2.00% 2.57%



TWS – Water Rate Adjustment Effective 9-1-24 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024 – __________ 
 
 

An ordinance to amend Chapter 62, Article IV, Section 62-76(a)(1) of the Code of 
Ordinances, Charter Township of Ypsilanti, to adjust water service rates. 

 
BE IT ORDERED BY THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, that: 
 

Section 62-76(a)(1) of Chapter 62, Article IV of the Code of Ordinances be revised as 
follows: 

 

(1)  For all billings rendered prior to September 1, 2024, existing water service rates shall 
prevail. For all billings rendered on or after September 1, 2024, charges for water service rates shall 
be as follows, for each bimonthly (two-month) period: 

 
Readiness-to-serve rates based on size of meter: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Commodity rate:  $3.88 per 100 cubic feet 

 
 

 

*         *         *         *         *         *         *         *         *         * 
  

Meter Size 
(inch) 

Water Rate 

5/8-3/4 $ 17.94 
1 $ 44.84 
1-1/2 $ 89.68 
2 $ 143.48 
3 $ 448.38 
4 $ 896.77 
6 $ 1,793.54  
8 $ 3,138.69 
10 $ 4,932.23 
12 $ 5,829.00 



TWS – Water Rate Adjustment Effective 9-1-24 

Page 2 of 2 

 

WITNESS: THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 
_________________________________ ________________________________ 
 Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor 
 
_________________________________ ________________________________ 
 Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk 
 
 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon the date of publication. 
 
I, Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, 

State of Michigan, hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. 2024-_____ consisting of (1) 
page was duly approved and adopted by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
assembled at a meeting of said board held __________________, 2024 after said ordinance had 
previously been introduced at a meeting of the board held ____________________, 2024.  I further 
certify the motion to adopt was made by member ______________________ and seconded by 
member _______________________ .  The vote on the motion is as follows: 
 
 

Yes: _________, _________, _________, _________, _________ 
 name name name name name 
      
No: _________, _________, _________, _________, _________ 
 name name name name name 

 
 

Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 
 
PUBLISH: ______________________ 

Day, Month, Year 
 



TWS – Sewer Rate Adjustment Effective 9-1-24 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024 – __________ 
 
 

An ordinance to amend Chapter 62, Article IV, Section 62-77 of the Code of 
Ordinances, Charter Township of Ypsilanti, to adjust sewage disposal rates. 

 
BE IT ORDERED BY THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, that: 
 

Section 62-77 of Chapter 62, Article IV of the Code of Ordinances be revised as 
follows: 

 

For all billings rendered prior to September 1, 2024, existing sewage disposal service 
rates shall prevail. For all billings rendered on or after September 1, 2024, charges for sewage 
disposal services shall be as follows, for each bimonthly (two-month) period: 

 
(1) Readiness-to-serve rates based on size of meter: 

 
 

Meter Size 
(inch) 

Sewer Rate 

5/8-3/4 $ 18.54 
1 $ 46.34 
1-1/2 $ 92.68 
2 $ 148.29 
3 $ 463.39 
4 $ 926.78 
6 $ 1,853.55 
8 $ 3,243.71 
10 $ 5,097.26 
12 $ 6,024.04 

 
 
 
 (2) Commodity rate:  $3.05 per 100 cubic feet 
 
 

 

*         *         *         *         *         *         *         *         *         * 
  



TWS – Sewer Rate Adjustment Effective 9-1-24 

Page 2 of 2 

 

WITNESS: THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 
_________________________________ ________________________________ 
 Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor 
 
_________________________________ ________________________________ 
 Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk 
 
 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon the date of publication. 
 
I, Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, 

State of Michigan, hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. 2024-_____ consisting of (1) 
page was duly approved and adopted by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
assembled at a meeting of said board held __________________, 2024 after said ordinance had 
previously been introduced at a meeting of the board held ____________________, 2024.  I further 
certify the motion to adopt was made by member ______________________ and seconded by 
member _______________________ .  The vote on the motion is as follows: 
 
 

Yes: _________, _________, _________, _________, _________ 
 name name name name name 
      
No: _________, _________, _________, _________, _________ 
 name name name name name 

 
 

Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 
 
PUBLISH: ______________________ 

Day, Month, Year 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 

Brenda L. Stumbo 

Township Clerk 

Heather Jarrell Roe 

Township Treasurer 

Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 

John Newman II 

Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 

Ryan Hunter 

 

 
Date:  July 9, 2024 

 
 

To:      Ypsilanti Township Board  
   

 
 

From: Brian McCleery,  
  Deputy Assessor 

 
 

Re:   Agenda Item to Authorize Property Sale to Marie Goode 
  
  K-11-11-332-028 475 Greenlawn St 

 
  K-11-11-332-029 481 Greenlawn St 

 
 

The Assessor’s Office is requesting approval to finalize the sale of the above 

property to Ms. Goode for $7,680 plus all closing costs.    
 

The above property is adjacent to Ms. Goode’s home at 469 Greenlawn St.  
She has agreed to combine the above property with her existing home and 

that no structures will be built on the property unless specifically approved by 
the Ypsilanti Township Board.    

 
Attached you will find the letter of agreement, property record cards and aerial 

photographs of the property.  If you have any questions or need more 
information, please don’t hesitate in contacting me. 
 



0 25.00

600

NOTE: Parcels may not be to scale.

1:

100.0
The information contained in this cadastral map is used 
to locate, identify and inventory parcels of land in 
Washtenaw County for appraisal and taxing  purposes 
only and is not to be construed as a "survey description". 
The information is provided with the understanding that 
the conclusions drawn from such  information are solely 
the responsibility of the user. Any assumption of legal 
status of this data is hereby disclaimed.

© 2013 Washtenaw County
THIS MAP REPRESENTS PARCELS ATTHE TIME OF PRINTING.  THE OFFICIAL PARCEL TAX MAPS ARE MAINTAINED SOLELY BY THE WASHTENAW COUNTY  
EQUALIZATION DEPARTMENT AND CAN BE OBTAINED BY CONTACTING THAT OFFICE AT 734-222-6662.

50.0

Feet

7/29/2022



*** Information herein deemed reliable but not guaranteed***

WASHTENAWCounty:YPSILANTI TOWNSHIPJurisdiction: Printed onParcel Number: K -11-11-332-028

00002020

00002021

EXEMPTEXEMPTEXEMPTEXEMPT2022

EXEMPTEXEMPTEXEMPTEXEMPT2023

Taxable
Value

Tribunal/
Other

Board of
Review

Assessed
Value

Building
Value

Land
Value

Year

                               * Factors *
Description   Frontage  Depth  Front  Depth  Rate %Adj. Reason             Value
                 60.00 108.00 1.0000 1.0000     0  100                         0
   60 Actual Front Feet, 0.15 Total Acres    Total Est. Land Value =           0

Land Value Estimates for Land Table 00900.EXEMPT - YPSILANTI TWP 900

Who     When       What

Level
Rolling
Low
High
Landscaped
Swamp
Wooded
Pond
Waterfront
Ravine
Wetland
Flood Plain

Topography of 
Site

Dirt Road
Gravel Road
Paved Road
Storm Sewer
Sidewalk
Water
Sewer
Electric
Gas
Curb
Street Lights
Standard Utilities
Underground Utils.

Public
Improvements

VacantXImproved

The Equalizer.  Copyright (c) 1999 - 2009.
Licensed To: Township of Ypsilanti, County 
of Washtenaw, Michigan

Split/Comb. on 06/04/2004 completed
06/04/2004 DSCHEIT                 ;
Parent Parcel(s): K -11-11-332-011;
Child Parcel(s): K -11-11-332-028, K
-11-11-332-029, K -11-11-332-030;
-----------------------------------------

Comments/Influences

LOT 118 EAST LAWN SUBDIVISION.

Tax Description

CHARTER TWP OF YPSILANTI
7200 S HURON RIVER DR
YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner's Name/Address

475 GREENLAWN ST

Property Address

2023 Est TCV 0

MAP #: 

P.R.E.   0%  

School: YPSILANTI SD (WILLOW RUN DEBT)

StatusNumberDateBuilding Permit(s)Zoning: R-5Class: RESIDENTIAL-VACAN

100.0PROPERTY TRANSFER 4429/91503-ARM'S LENGTHWD09/24/200430,000ARCHCON MANAGEMENT INC.FERRELL, KAY S.

100.0DEED4539/11621-NOT USED/OTHERQC10/05/20051CHAMAMIT, MOHAMADARCHCON MANAGEMENT INC.

100.0PROPERTY TRANSFER 4654/93103-ARM'S LENGTHWD11/07/20078,000HERMAN, DANIELACHAMAMIT, MOHAMAD

100.0DEEDL 4881 P 20021-NOT USED/OTHERQC12/28/20110CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILWASHTENAW COUNTY TREASURE

Prcnt.
Trans.

Verified
By

Liber
& Page

Terms of SaleInst.
Type

Sale
Date

Sale
Price

GranteeGrantor

07/29/2022



0 25.00

600

NOTE: Parcels may not be to scale.

1:

100.0
The information contained in this cadastral map is used 
to locate, identify and inventory parcels of land in 
Washtenaw County for appraisal and taxing  purposes 
only and is not to be construed as a "survey description". 
The information is provided with the understanding that 
the conclusions drawn from such  information are solely 
the responsibility of the user. Any assumption of legal 
status of this data is hereby disclaimed.

© 2013 Washtenaw County
THIS MAP REPRESENTS PARCELS ATTHE TIME OF PRINTING.  THE OFFICIAL PARCEL TAX MAPS ARE MAINTAINED SOLELY BY THE WASHTENAW COUNTY  
EQUALIZATION DEPARTMENT AND CAN BE OBTAINED BY CONTACTING THAT OFFICE AT 734-222-6662.

50.0

Feet

7/29/2022



*** Information herein deemed reliable but not guaranteed***

WASHTENAWCounty:YPSILANTI TOWNSHIPJurisdiction: Printed onParcel Number: K -11-11-332-029

00002020

00002021

EXEMPTEXEMPTEXEMPTEXEMPT2022

EXEMPTEXEMPTEXEMPTEXEMPT2023

Taxable
Value

Tribunal/
Other

Board of
Review

Assessed
Value

Building
Value

Land
Value

Year

                               * Factors *
Description   Frontage  Depth  Front  Depth  Rate %Adj. Reason             Value
                 60.00 108.00 1.0000 1.0000     0  100                         0
   60 Actual Front Feet, 0.15 Total Acres    Total Est. Land Value =           0

Land Value Estimates for Land Table 00900.EXEMPT - YPSILANTI TWP 900

Who     When       What

Level
Rolling
Low
High
Landscaped
Swamp
Wooded
Pond
Waterfront
Ravine
Wetland
Flood Plain

Topography of 
Site

Dirt Road
Gravel Road
Paved Road
Storm Sewer
Sidewalk
Water
Sewer
Electric
Gas
Curb
Street Lights
Standard Utilities
Underground Utils.

Public
Improvements

VacantXImproved

The Equalizer.  Copyright (c) 1999 - 2009.
Licensed To: Township of Ypsilanti, County 
of Washtenaw, Michigan

Split/Comb. on 06/04/2004 completed
06/04/2004 DSCHEIT                 ;
Parent Parcel(s): K -11-11-332-011;
Child Parcel(s): K -11-11-332-028, K
-11-11-332-029, K -11-11-332-030;
-----------------------------------------

Comments/Influences
LOT 117 EAST LAWN SUBDIVISION.

Tax Description

CHARTER TWP OF YPSILANTI
7200 S HURON RIVER DR
YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner's Name/Address

481 GREENLAWN ST

Property Address

2023 Est TCV 0

MAP #: 

P.R.E.   0%  

School: YPSILANTI SD (WILLOW RUN DEBT)

StatusNumberDateBuilding Permit(s)Zoning: R-5Class: RESIDENTIAL-VACAN

100.0PROPERTY TRANSFER 4429/91503-ARM'S LENGTHWD09/24/200430,000ARCHCON MANAGEMENT INC.FERRELL, KAY S.

100.0DEED4539/11621-NOT USED/OTHERQC10/05/20051CHAMAMIT, MOHAMADARCHCON MANAGEMENT INC.

100.0PROPERTY TRANSFER 4654/93121-NOT USED/OTHERWD11/07/20078,000HERMAN, DANIELACHAMAMIT, MOHAMAD

100.0DEEDL 4881 P 20021-NOT USED/OTHERQC12/28/20110CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILWASHTENAW COUNTY TREASURE

Prcnt.
Trans.

Verified
By

Liber
& Page

Terms of SaleInst.
Type

Sale
Date

Sale
Price

GranteeGrantor

07/29/2022



























*** Information herein deemed reliable but not guaranteed***

WASHTENAWCounty:YPSILANTI TOWNSHIPJurisdiction: Printed onParcel Number: K -11-03-175-021

73,009C133,600105,80027,8002022

76,659C140,700111,70029,0002023

148,300S148,300115,20033,1002024

TentativeTentativeTentativeTentative2025

Taxable
Value

Tribunal/
Other

Board of
Review

Assessed
Value

Building
Value

Land
Value

Year

                               * Factors *
Description   Frontage  Depth  Front  Depth  Rate %Adj. Reason             Value
FRONT FOOT       75.00 182.94 0.8944 1.2347   800  100                    66,261
   75 Actual Front Feet, 0.32 Total Acres    Total Est. Land Value =      66,261

Land Value Estimates for Land Table 00520.RES WR SCHLS SEC 1,2,3,10 - 520

JLS 06/30/2023 3.DATA VER
CJW 08/26/2021 3.DATA VER
BMM 07/01/2010 07-2010 CA

Who     When       What

Level
Rolling
Low
High
Landscaped
Swamp
Wooded
Pond
Waterfront
Ravine
Wetland
Flood Plain

Topography of 
Site

Dirt Road
Gravel Road
Paved Road
Storm Sewer
Sidewalk
Water
Sewer
Electric
Gas
Curb
Street Lights
Standard Utilities
Underground Utils.

X

X
X

Public
Improvements

VacantImprovedX

The Equalizer.  Copyright (c) 1999 - 2009.
Licensed To: Township of Ypsilanti, County 
of Washtenaw, Michigan

Comments/Influences

YP#3-1C COM AT E 1/4 COR OF SEC, TH SOUTH
88 DEG 42' 10" W 934 FT IN E & W 1/4 LINE
FOR PLOF BEG, TH S 88 DEG 42' 10" W 75 FT
 TH N 1 DEG 17' 50" W 182.94 FT, TH N 88
DEG 42' 10" E 75 FT, TH SOUTH 1 DEG 17'
50" E 182.94 FT TO PL OF BEG, BEING PART
OF NE FRL 1/4 SEC 3 T3S-R7E 0.31 AC.

Tax Description

SOVEREIGN, NANCY
DIANE SZCZESNIAK
1275 HOLMES RD
YPSILANTI MI 48198

Owner's Name/Address

1275 HOLMES RD

Property Address

N/APB17-081007/05/2017Res Alter/Repair2025 Est TCV Tentative

N/APE17-028907/05/2017ElectricalMAP #: R 003 006 00

N/APM17-069307/05/2017Mech/RefrigerationP.R.E. 100% 12/01/2023 

N/APB24-019203/21/2024Res - RoofSchool: YPSILANTI SD (WILLOW RUN DEBT)

StatusNumberDateBuilding Permit(s)Zoning: R-4Class: RESIDENTIAL-IMPRO

0.0PROPERTY TRANSFER 5064/64610-FORECLOSURESD10/23/201459,208CITIMORTGAGE INC. (3)STEWART, DANNY & ROSANNA

100.0DEED5067/93717-LENDING TO LENDINGQC11/04/20141FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGCITIMORTGAGE INC. (3)

100.0PROPERTY TRANSFER 5151/23311-FROM LENDING INSTITUTCD05/11/201681,000JIMENEZ, WENDELL ANTONIO FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAG

100.0PROPERTY TRANSFER 03-ARM'S LENGTHWD11/15/2023333,000SOVEREIGN, NANCYJIMENEZ, WENDELL ANTONIO 

Prcnt.
Trans.

Verified
By

Liber
& Page

Terms of SaleInst.
Type

Sale
Date

Sale
Price

GranteeGrantor

06/18/2024



Class: C -5
Effec. Age: 61
Floor Area: 2,621    
Total Base New : 363,288         E.C.F.
Total Depr Cost: 163,450       X  1.400
Estimated T.C.V: 228,830      

Cost Est. for Res. Bldg: 1  Single Family  1 1/2 STORY     Cls  C -5  Blt 1936
(11) Heating System: Forced Heat & Cool
Ground Area = 2309 SF   Floor Area = 2621 SF.
Phy/Ab.Phy/Func/Econ/Comb. % Good=45/100/100/100/45
Building Areas
Stories      Exterior     Foundation           Size     Cost New   Depr. Cost 
2 Story      Siding       Basement              312                           
1 Story      Siding       Basement              312                           
1 Story      Siding       Crawl Space         1,685                           
                                             Total:      332,965      149,805
Other Additions/Adjustments
Plumbing
  3 Fixture Bath                                  1        4,975        2,239 
Deck
  Treated Wood                                  132        3,378        1,520 
  Treated Wood                                  112        2,993        1,347 
Garages
Class: CD Exterior: Siding Foundation: 42 Inch (Unfinished)
  Base Cost                                     264       14,483        6,517 
Water/Sewer
  Public Water                                    1        1,600          720 
  Public Sewer                                    1        1,600          720 
Porches
  CCP  (1 Story)                                 24        1,294          582 
                                            Totals:      363,288      163,450
Notes:  
      ECF (RES WR 520 C SEC 3,WASHTENAW CONCOURSE) 1.400 => TCV:      228,830

Carport Area: 
Roof: 

Bsmnt Garage: 

Year Built: 
Car Capacity: 
Class: CD
Exterior: Siding
Brick Ven.: 0
Stone Ven.: 0
Common Wall: Detache
Foundation: 42 Inch
Finished ?: 
Auto. Doors: 0
Mech. Doors: 0
Area: 264
% Good: 0
Storage Area: 0
No Conc. Floor: 0

 (17) Garage

CCP  (1 Story)
Treated Wood
Treated Wood

24
132
112

TypeArea

 (16) Porches/Decks

Interior 1 Story
Interior 2 Story
2nd/Same Stack
Two Sided
Exterior 1 Story
Exterior 2 Story
Prefab 1 Story
Prefab 2 Story
Heat Circulator
Raised Hearth
Wood Stove
Direct-Vented Ga

 (15) Fireplaces

Appliance Allow.
Cook Top
Dishwasher
Garbage Disposal
Bath Heater
Vent Fan
Hot Tub
Unvented Hood
Vented Hood
Intercom
Jacuzzi Tub
Jacuzzi repl.Tub
Oven
Microwave
Standard Range
Self Clean Range
Sauna
Trash Compactor
Central Vacuum
Security System

 (15) Built-ins

 Lump Sum Items:

Public Water
Public Sewer
Water Well
1000 Gal Septic
2000 Gal Septic

1
1

 (14) Water/Sewer

Average Fixture(s)
3 Fixture Bath
2 Fixture Bath
Softener, Auto
Softener, Manual
Solar Water Heat
No Plumbing
Extra Toilet
Extra Sink
Separate Shower
Ceramic Tile Floor
Ceramic Tile Wains
Ceramic Tub Alcove
Vent Fan

2

 (13) Plumbing

FewAve.XMany

No. of Elec. Outlets

MinOrd.XEx.

 No./Qual. of Fixtures

Amps Service100

 (12) Electric

Central Air
Wood Furnace

Forced Air w/o Ducts
Forced Air w/ Ducts 
Forced Hot Water
Electric Baseboard
Elec. Ceil. Radiant
Radiant (in-floor)
Electric Wall Heat
Space Heater
Wall/Floor Furnace
Forced Heat & Cool
Heat Pump
No Heating/Cooling

X

Elec.
Steam

Oil
Coal

Gas
Wood

X

 (11) Heating/Cooling

 Joists: 
 Unsupported Len:  
 Cntr.Sup: 

 (10) Floor Support

Recreation   SF
Living       SF
Walkout Doors (B)
No Floor     SF
Walkout Doors (A)

 (9) Basement Finish

Conc. Block
Poured Conc.
Stone
Treated Wood
Concrete Floor

 (8) Basement

 Basement: 624  S.F.
 Crawl: 1685  S.F.
 Slab: 0  S.F.
 Height to Joists: 0.0

 (7) Excavation

DrywallX

 (6) Ceilings

 Kitchen: 
 Other: 
 Other: 

 (5) Floors

H.C.XSolidDoors

SmallOrdXLg

Size of Closets

MinOrdXEx

Trim & Decoration

Plaster
Wood T&G

Drywall
Paneled

X

(4) Interior

Eavestrough
Insulation
Front Overhang
Other Overhang

 0
 0

 (3) Roof (cont.)

*** Information herein deemed reliable but not guaranteed***

Residential Building 1 of 1 Printed onParcel Number: K -11-03-175-021

 Chimney: Brick

Asphalt ShingleX

Gambrel
Mansard
Shed

Gable
Hip
Flat

X

 (3) Roof

Wood Sash
Metal Sash
Vinyl Sash
Double Hung
Horiz. Slide
Casement
Double Glass
Patio Doors
Storms & Screens

Large
Avg.
Small

X
Many
Avg.
Few

X

 (2) Windows

Wood/Shingle
Aluminum/Vinyl
Brick

Insulation

X

X

 (1) Exterior

Basement
1st Floor
2nd Floor
Bedrooms

10

7

 Room List

 Condition: Good

Remodeled
1999

 Yr Built
 1936 

 Building Style:
 1 1/2 STORY

Wood  FrameX

Single Family
Mobile Home
Town Home
Duplex
A-Frame

X

 Building Type

06/18/2024



*** Information herein deemed reliable but not guaranteed***

Parcel Number: K -11-03-175-021, Residential Building 1 Printed on 06/18/2024



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees  
 
From:  Kirk Sherwood, PGA Director of Golf 
 
CC:  John Hines, Municipal Services Director 
 
Date:  July 10, 2024 
 
Subject: Request Authorization to accept the updated agreement with TeeSnap for the 
Green Oaks Golf Course tee sheet and point of sale operations.     
 
Green Oaks Golf Course is seeking approval to accept the updated agreement for $11,000 with 
TeeSnap for their platform that books tee times and makes point of sale sales. This is an annual 
agreement that is renewed each year.  This request would be budgeted in future years, but for 
2024 be contingent on a budget amendment.   
 
The Golf Course is bringing this update to the board to change the annual agreement to cash 
payment only.  Since this agreement originated in 2019, the rate for services was a trade of two 
tee times that was up to eight players per day throughout the season.  With the golf season 
ranging for eight months, golf staff reviewed the tee time usage and determined that this would 
offer a significant boost in revenue to make this adjustment.  It would also give the golf course 
complete control of the tee sheet again that will have additional benefits.   
 
 
 
Kirk Sherwood 
PGA Director of Golf 
ksherwood@ypsitownship.org  
 

mailto:ksherwood@ypsitownship.org




















 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Josh Kugler, Recreation Services Manager 
 
CC:  John Hines, Municipal Services Director 
 
Date:  July 10, 2024 
 
RE:   Request to approve the 2024-2025 Contract with Washtenaw Community 

College for building use at the Ypsilanti Township Community Center. 
 
The Recreation Department is requesting the approval of the updated agreement with Washtenaw 
Community College (WCC) to Offer English as a Second Language (ESL) and GED Classes at 
the Ypsilanti Township Community Center.  
 
The proposed agreement is aligned with the 2023-2024 agreement with WCC requesting to 
utilize the same space in the building as the sole user of the Community Center 300 hallway.  
This includes rooms 301, 303 and 305.  Their annual dues will remain at $30,000 for the 2024-
2025 academic year. Use of this space should allow for continued growth for their programs. 
 
After the Community Center is able to open the 200 hallway for operations, this agreement 
should not limit rental opportunities for the residents or programming space for the center.   
 
Attached is the proposed contract from WCC.  
 
WCC’s liability insurance certificate, listing Ypsilanti Township as “additional insured” will be 
provided after the agreement is signed, per their new insurer. 
 
At that time it will be forwarded to Attorney Winters for review. 
 
 
 
Josh Kugler 
Recreation Services Manager 
jkugler@ypsitownship.org 
734-544-3817 

mailto:mhoffmeister@ytown.org


Revised 7/2/2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  1 

WASHTENAW COMMUNITY COLLEGE & YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY CENTER 
 AGREEMENT FOR EXTENSION CENTER OFFERINGS 

 
 
This agreement is made by and between Washtenaw Community College, hereinafter called 
the College and the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Community Center, Ypsilanti, Michigan 
hereinafter called the Center. 

 
• The College and the Center desire to be partners in providing Adult Education ESL 

and GED instructional program classes funded by the 2024-25 Section 107, MI-State 
School Aid Act and Federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act-Title II- Adult 
Education and Family Literacy Act to the residents of the College service area, in 
particular, Ypsilanti Township and the City of Ypsilanti, thereby giving added 
dimension to the programs and services already available to the people of the 
community, with input from the Center staff and other community leaders. The 
Center desires to make this program available to the people of the College service 
area and Ypsilanti area by providing facilities and support for said adult education 
instructional programs; therefore, it is deemed advisable to establish certain rules, 
regulations, and financial determinations so that the respective roles of the College 
and the Center can be delineated for the accomplishment of these purposes. 

 
Therefore, be it mutually agreed in considerations of the promises to each other as follows: 
 
The College agrees: 
 

• To adhere to safety protocols and procedures implemented by the Center to 
minimize spread of COVID-19, when advised.  
 

• To provide all instructional personnel and direct administrative services necessary for 
conducting quality adult education instructional program classes. 

 
• To provide classroom and technical equipment necessary to conduct classes. 
 
• To promote enrollment for the adult education instructional program classes by 

providing appropriate publicity through local media and other means. 
 
• To schedule the adult education instructional program classes at those times, days 

and evenings, in compliance to a mutually agreed upon calendar. A calendar of 
orientation, PD, and class dates and times must be arranged through the Center’s 
Director prior to the start of each new program session.  

 
• To make adequate prior arrangements and communications for class time and date 

changes due to unforeseen circumstances. 
 



Revised 7/2/2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  2 

• To follow reasonable practices relating to the proper use and care of the Center 
properties and facilities. 

 
• To conclude all classes no later than 8:00 p.m. 
 
• To adhere to the current applicable Center’s Rules and Regulations as stated in the 

following: 
 

o The Community Center is a smoke free, alcohol free, and drug free facility. 
o The use of open flames, such as lighted candles, are strictly prohibited. 
o Any form of gambling or game of chance, unless expressively permitted by law 

and subject to the approval and issuance of special permits is prohibited on 
the premises. 

o A Building Attendant and/or Custodian will be on duty during all hours of 
building operation and groups must guarantee responsiveness to the directives 
of all department staff. Accidents and damage, no matter how trivial must be 
reported to Department staff immediately. 

o Property of the Community Center shall not be removed from the facility at any 
time. 

o Groups shall not use, remove or disturb any supplies, bulletin boards or any 
other items in the Community Center. Some items may be moved or placed 
out of sight with advanced Department approval and must be returned to the 
original location at completion of use.  

o Groups shall be restricted to the room(s) assigned, except for use of restrooms 
and common areas. Use of facilities outside the building is restricted to the 
parking facilities unless granted prior Department approval. 

o Placement of posters, banners, decorations, etc. may be permitted upon prior 
Department approval.  

o The Community Center is not responsible for equipment or supplies brought in 
by groups, but will work collaboratively with the College to ensure safety and 
security of the rented space. 

o The Charter Township of Ypsilanti assumes no responsibility, financial or 
otherwise, for accidents or injuries sustained by individual or groups of 
individuals while using the facilities.  

o The Charter Township of Ypsilanti assumes no responsibility for damage or 
theft of personal items. 

o The Township & organization using township buildings shall refrain from using 
Styrofoam products for use in Township Building (Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti Resolution 89-16). 

 
The Center agrees: 
 

• To implement the State or Washtenaw County recommended safety protocols and 
guidelines to minimize the exposure and spread of COVID-19, if advised. 
 



Revised 7/2/2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  3 

• To provide three designated classrooms at the Center (Rooms 301, 303 & 305) for 
exclusive use of adult education services and classes.  
 

• The College and the Township will mutually agree to a program calendar for the 
delivery of educational services and classes.   
 

• To allow persons to register for adult education ESL instructional program classes in 
accordance with the College’s non-discrimination, Open Door Policy. 

 
• To provide an on-site employee for the purpose of opening and closing the buildings 

and classrooms where adult education instructional program classes are conducted. 
 
• To provide custodial and maintenance services for the facilities and grounds used by 

the adult education instructional program classes. 
 

• To make classrooms physically accessible to the students and to see that the 
classrooms are kept open for adult education instructional program classes in a timely 
manner. 

 
• To provide security and safety arrangements for the adult education instructional 

program classes faculty and students similar to those provided to the employees and 
participants of the Center. 
 

• In addition to the mutually agreed upon calendar that recognizes the Center’s 
furloughs and planned closures, on certain school days, the Center may be closed due 
to inclement weather. On these days, adult education instructional program classes 
may not meet. 

 
 
 
 
General Provisions: 
 

For the duration of this contract, this agreement covers the exclusive use of rooms 
301, 303 & 305 for adult education purposes only.  
 

• It shall be the individual responsibility of each of the parties to carry and maintain its 
own insurance of public liability and property damage. 

 
• The Center and the College further agree to negotiate any changes that may be 

deemed necessary as a result of changed circumstances and to amend the contract 
through mutual agreement at any time during the said contract period.  

 
• The Center and the College agree to be bound by the provisions of this operating 

agreement for the period July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 for the total sum of 



Revised 7/2/2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  4 

$30,000.00. Twenty-thousand dollars ($20,000.) of the payment will derived from the 
24-25 Section 107, MI-State School Aid Act. Ten thousand ($10,000.) will derived from 
the Federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act-Title II- Adult Education and 
Family Literacy Act. The total rent sum covers the cost of providing Adult Educations 
services and will be paid in three equal installments of $10,000.00 by October 18, 
2024, January 27, 2025, & May 2, 2025. The first and second installments will be paid 
from State School Aid Sections 107 fund. The third installment will be paid from the 
Federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act-Title II-Adult Education and Family 
Literacy Act. The check will be made payable to the Charter Township of Ypsilanti. 
 

Responsible College Administrator Bonnie Truhn, Adult Transitions Pathways Director  

College Area/Office Adult Transitions Pathway State School Aid Section 107 FOAPAL: 
24455-44450-7507-440-FC261 & Adult Transitions Pathway Federal Workforce 
Innovation and Opportunity Act-Title II-Adult Education and Family Literacy Act 
FOAPAL: 22505-42500-7507-440-FC261 

 

             
Donald Harrison     Date 
Director of Purchasing 
 
 
 
 
             

 Township Supervisor/Designee   Date 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti  

 
 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Belinda Kingsley, Community Compliance Director 
 
Re: Request to receive authorization for Circuit Court litigation to abate a public 

nuisance at properties identified as 8061 Merritt Rd, 541 Woodlawn, 922 N 
River St and 974 N Prospect Rd; funded in account 101-729-801.023. 

 
Date:  July 10, 2024 
 
 
 
8061 Merritt Road 
 
The Ypsilanti Township Ordinance and Planning Departments have investigated a public 
nuisance, at 8061 Merritt Rd, for which authorization is requested to engage legal services to 
abate said nuisance.   
 

 
 



 2 

The property identified as 8061 Merritt Road is located east of Whittaker and west of Tuttle 
Hill, in an R-3 One-Family Residential zone.  The current owner of this mostly vacant property is 
Andrew Burmeister, who resides at 5988 Stony Creek Rd.  There is a small garage structure 
located on the property that is being utilized for storage by the owner.  The Township does not 
have records regarding a permit being issued for this accessory structure.   
 
The Ordinance Department has responded to several complaints since Mr. Burmeister 
purchased the property in the amount of $29,700, from Monroe Bank & Trust in 2013, 
following a foreclosure.  The complaints received have been regarding the accumulation of 
wood by-products, such as large logs and woodchips from a tree removal business operated by 
the property owner.  In addition, the unapproved business use has led to the accumulation of 
blight, including vehicles, cargo containers, trailers and other equipment.  
 
Following a complaint in April 2024, an inspection was conducted by an Ordinance Officer.  
During a conversation with Mr. Burmeister, he stated that he is operating a business on the 
property.   He cuts down trees for customers and the logs are brought to the property to be 
processed and sold as firewood and wood chips. The property is zoned Residential, and this use 
of the property for "outdoor storage and contractors/landscapers’ yard" is a violation of the 
Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Based on Mr. Burmeister’s statement that he is operating a business on the property, a Notice 
of Violation was sent by the Township Planning Coordinator stating that the business use needs 
to cease and immediate removal of the vehicles, wood materials, trailers, plows and refuse was 
required. When compliance did not occur in a timely manner, an appointment was scheduled 
for the Township Planning Coordinator and Community Compliance Director to meet him on-
site.  This meeting took place on May 23, 2024.  Based on the pictures taken by Ordinance in 
April 2024, the violations on the property had intensified, with the stockpiling of wood by-
products increased, along with additional accumulation of vehicles and junk, including an 
asphalt machine.   
 
The property owner has had an opportunity to resolve the violations on this parcel of vacant 
land but has disregarded the warnings provided and intensified the unpermitted uses and 
accumulation of blight. We are requesting authorization to initiate legal action in Circuit Court 
to address the public nuisance this property represents.  
 
Thank you for your consideration and your continued support for our efforts to remove public 
nuisances from the Township. 
 



 3 

 
 
 
 

 



 4 

 
 
 

 
 



 5 

 
 

 
  



 6 

541 Woodlawn Ave 
 
The Ypsilanti Township Ordinance Department has investigated a public nuisance, at 541 
Woodlawn Ave, for which authorization is requested to engage legal services to abate said 
nuisance.   
 

 
 
The property identified as 541 Woodlawn Ave is located east of S Harris, north of US12/I-94 and 
south of Ecorse, in an R-5 One-Family Residential zone.  The current owner of this rental 
property is Kincade Property Management LLC, with a Munith, Michigan address.  
 
The Ordinance Department received a complaint in July 2023 regarding non-operable vehicles 
in the driveway, residents working on vehicles in the driveway and aggressive dogs escaping 
from the house. A Notice of Violation was issued for the vehicles, and the dog complaint was 
forwarded to Washtenaw County Sheriff’s Department’s animal control officer.  
 
There have been numerous other complaints received since July 2023, for inoperable, 
unlicensed vehicles, a vehicle with extensive front end damage, blight (piles of tires, wood, bags 
of trash and junk in the driveway) and the garage door being removed and placed with a black 
tarp.  There are concerns regarding a potential vehicle repair business being operated due to 
the number of vehicles being repaired in the driveway that do not belong to the residents 
legally occupying the property.  The vehicles are visibly under repair with open hoods, placed 
on jacks for long periods of time, tools on the driveway and individuals openly working on 
them.  
 



 7 

The Ordinance Department has worked with the property owner to resolve the violations and 
several Notice of Violation letters have been issued to the resident and the property owner.  
The violations have continued and intensified over the last year.  While obtaining current 
photos on June 21, 2024, I was approached by a neighbor and advised that the residents 
repeatedly drive across his property, work on vehicles at all hours, have trash blowing around 
the neighborhood, and refuse to turn down loud music, among other complaints.  
 
The activities of the tenants in this rental property are negatively impacting the neighborhood, 
affecting property values and causing homeowners to move away.  It is not reasonable to allow 
this one property to impact so many others who are entitled to peaceful enjoyment of their 
properties.  Authorization to initiate legal action in Circuit Court to address the public nuisance 
this property represents is requested.  
 
  

 
 



 8 

 
 

 
 



 9 

 
 
 

  



 10 

922 N River St. 
 
The Ypsilanti Township Ordinance Department has investigated a public nuisance, at 922 N 
River St., for which authorization is requested to engage legal services to abate said nuisance.   
 

 
 
The property identified as 922 N River St. is located north of Holmes and west of N Prospect in 
an R-4 One-Family Residential zone.  The current owner of the property is Debra Manty 
(deceased).  An estate has not been opened since her death on April 6, 2023, and a lawful 
relative has not come forward to claim the property.  
 
The Ordinance Department received a complaint about the house being vacant and not 
maintained on July 6, 2023.  The property was posted as an unregistered vacant and an 
investigation was started.  The conclusion was that although a neighbor was mowing the grass 
there was no one claiming or maintaining the house.   
 
On August 29, 2023, an Administrative Seach Warrant was approved by the Court and 
executed.  There were no major issues noted within the interior of the house, the utilities had 
been shut off and the house was secured.  Unfortunately, the house has continued to remain 
unoccupied, and maintenance is not being performed which is causing it to deteriorate.   
 
A complaint was received on May 31, 2024, that the grass was not being mowed.  The house 
was posted with a notice to mow, and upon reinspection it had been mowed, likely by the same 
neighbor. 
 



 11 

The Township, neighbors and neighborhood cannot continue to wait for someone to come 
forward to claim this house, perform maintenance or allow it to go into foreclosure and 
continue to deteriorate further.  Steps need to be taken to return this property to habitable 
housing.  We are requesting authorization to initiate legal action in Circuit Court to address the 
public nuisance this house represents.   
 
Thank you for your consideration and your continued support for our efforts to remove public 
nuisances from the Township. 
 

 
 



 12 

 
 

 
 
  



 13 

974 N Prospect Road 
 
The Ypsilanti Township Ordinance Department has investigated a public nuisance, at 974 N 
Prospect Road, for which authorization is requested to engage legal services to abate said 
nuisance.   
 

 
 
The property identified as 974 N Prospect Road is located west of Carver Ave and north of 
Holmes Rd, in an R-4 One-Family Residential zone.  The current owner of this property is Mark 
Teachout.   
 
The house located at 974 N Prospect sustained significant damage during a weather-related 
event in 2023.  A large tree branch fell on the enclosed front porch, making the porch unsafe to 
enter and causing structural defects to the main portion of the house.  The damage was 
significant enough for DTE to disconnect gas and electric services and remove the meter from 
the house.  The water was shut off by YCUA since there was no heat, and the house was 
winterized. 
 
The Ordinance Department received a complaint regarding the condition of the house on 
February 9, 2024, and performed an exterior inspection.  A Notice of Violation was issued to 
remove the tarp covering the front porch, make necessary repairs to the structure and remove 
blight from the property.  A second NOV was issued February 14, 2024, requesting the property 
owner register the vacant structure and permit an interior inspection by the Township.  
Additionally, it was requested that the property owner remove an unlicensed/inoperable 
vehicle from the property.   



 14 

 
The property owner, Mr. Teachout, contacted the Township to discuss the status of the house, 
filed the requested Vacant Registration and permitted an inspection to take place on March 1, 
2024.  A second inspection was performed with a Building Department inspector on March 5, 
2024, and a Notice of Violation/Condemnation was issued.  The Certificate of Occupancy on the 
house was suspended and the house cannot be occupied until the necessary repairs are 
completed.  The blight on the outside of the house, in the front and back yards and the vehicle 
have been removed.   
 
The house remains covered with a tarp in the front and there has been action taken to resolve 
the structural issues are return the house to being habitable.  It is unfair to the neighboring 
residents to permit this house to remain in its current condition.  We are requesting 
authorization to initiate legal action in Circuit Court to address the public nuisance this house 
represents.   
 
Thank you for your consideration and your continued support for our efforts to remove public 
nuisances from the Township. 
 
 

 
 



 15 

 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:      Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Brenda L. Stumbo, Township Supervisor 
 
Date:   July 10, 2024 
 
Re: Request for 50/50 Raffle for the John E. Lawrence Jazz Summer Concert Series 

The Supervisor’s Office received an email from John E. Lawrence requesting to conduct a 50/50 
raffle at the summer jazz concert series. He first contacted the State of Michigan who referred 
him to the Township. 

We would like to request on his behalf for Township approval to send to the State of Michigan 
for a license to sell 50/50 raffle tickets. The John E. Lawrence Community Entertainment is a 
nonprofit organization who has an 8 week concert series on Ford Lake that is a great benefit to 
the community. Attached is the resolution that is being requested for approval and the 501 c3 
paperwork. 

Thank you for your consideration.  





CHARTER TOWNSHIP  
OF YPSILANTI 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-10 

RESOLUTION FOR 
CHARITABLE GAMING 
LICENSE FOR JOHN E. 

LAWRENCE 
ENTERTAINMENT  

 
WHEREAS, this Local Governing Body Resolution for Charitable Gaming 
Licenses is for the John E. Lawrence Entertainment to conduct a 50/50 
Raffle; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees has 
approved John E. Lawrence Entertainment’s request for a 50/50 raffle as 
indicated above; and 

 
WHEREAS, this approval is required by MCL.432.103(K)(ii); and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees designates and agrees that John E. Lawrence be the 
authorized official designee in this instance, when application is made 
to the State of Michigan Gaming Control Board for this Charitable Gaming 
License. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I, Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan 
hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2024-10 approved by the 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular Meeting held on July 16, 2024.  

 
 

Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk                                                                   
                             Charter Township of Ypsilanti  

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

 2024 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 9

JULY 16, 2024

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $7,734.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699-999 $7,734.00

Net Revenues $7,734.00

Expenditures: Membership and Dues 101-101-958.000 $7,734.00

Net Expenditures $7,734.00

206 - FIRE FUND Total Increase $15,818.00

Revenues: Insurance Reimbursement 206-000-676.012 $15,818.00

Net Revenues $15,818.00

Expenditures: Auto & Truck Maint Station #1 206-336-935.001 $15,818.00

Net Expenditures $15,818.00

230 - RECREATION FUND Total Increase $6,000.00

Revenues: Contributions - Rosie & Art in the Park 230-000-675.008 $6,000.00

Net Revenues $6,000.00

Expenditures: Special Events - Rosie 230-754-963.600 $6,000.00

Net Expenditures $6,000.00

584- GOLF FUND Total Increase $11,000.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 584-000-699-999 $11,000.00

Net Revenues $11,000.00

Expenditures: Contractual/Custom Software 584-784-819.000 $11,000.00

Net Expenditures $11,000.00

Request to add a general ledger number and increase the budget for the agreement with TeeSnap to use their 

booking tee time software.  This will be funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance. 

Request to increase the membership and dues line for the 2023 SEMCOG annual membership sent to us after 

May 2024. This caused the budget shortfall as the amount was budgeted in 2023 and those do not carry 

forward automatically.  This will be funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance. 

Request to increase budget for insurance reimbursements revenue and truck maintenance expenditure for the 

2008 Spartan Fire Truck. This will be funded by the insurance reimbursement we received on May 23, 2024.

Request to increase the contribution & donation revenue and the Rosie and Special Events expenditure lines.  

This is to recognize the excess contributions received and increase the budget for the expenditure line related 

to the special events.  This is funded by the contributions and donations received from Parda Credit Union, 

South Huron Urgent Care Center, Sam Brown Sales, and the Community Foundation. 

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2024 Budget (#7)  

 

 

 

 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $7,734 to $27,034,260 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Fire Fund budget by $15,818 to $5,241,952 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Recreation Fund budget by $6,000 to $926,895 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined.  

 

Move to increase the Golf Fund budget by $11,000 to $957,388 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined.  

 



 

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 

 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Michael Saranen, Operation Manager 
 
Date:  July 9, 2024 
 
Subject: Request to Authorize Barr Engineering to Complete the Studies Required Prior to 
Performing the Level 2 Riske Analysis as Part of the 2025 Part 12D Comprehensive Analysis by 
an Independent Consultant in amount of $ 250,000.00 to be charged to 101.902.981.110. 
 
The Hydro Station is due to have a 5-year inspection to be done by an independent consultant in 
2025. Recent changes in this process will require a deeper dive into the design, construction, 
performance and impacts of the dam. In preparation for this inspection, several studies have to be 
updated to current standards set in the FERC guidelines for hydroelectric project.  
 
I am requesting the Board authorize Barr Engineering to perform these items listed in the table 
below in the amount of $250,000.00 and is using funds that were received from ARPA and is 
budgeted in line item # 101.902.981.110. 

 
Please place this on the next available Broad Agenda under “Authorization and Bids”. 



Ford Lake Dam 2025 Part 12D CA - fees estimates for prep studies

David Hibbs <DHibbs@barr.com>
Fri 5/31/2024 5:21 PM
To:​Michael Saranen <msaranen@ypsitownship.org>​

Michael –
Below are two emails with cost estimates to complete the studies required prior to performing the L2RA:
** Probabilistic loading estimates for hydrologic loads
** Probabilistic loading estimates for seismic loads
** Consequence estimates (life loss and others as appropriate)
 
Seismic loading task if fairly straightforward.
The hydrologic loading task is complicated. A good PMF is needed to complete this.
The consequence estimates require a good dam breach model/inundation areas (and a good PMF).
 
FERC has been asking for a new PMF and a new Dam Breach model since the 2017 Special Spillway
Assessment.
It will be very hard for the IC Team to conduct a meaningful L2RA without a good PMF and Dam Breach
Model.
 
Let’s discuss Monday if you have time.
 
Dave
 
   David Hibbs, PhD, PE

   Senior Civil Engineer
   Ann Arbor, MI office: 734.922.4437
   cell: 734.205.8993
   dhibbs@barr.com
   www.barr.com

If you no longer wish to receive marketing e-mails from Barr, respond to communications@barr.com and we will be happy to honor
your request.

 
From: Cory D. Anderson <CAnderson@barr.com>
Sent: Friday, May 31, 2024 12:17 PM
To: David Hibbs <DHibbs@barr.com>
Cc: Omid M. Mohseni <OMohseni@barr.com>; Cory D. Anderson <CAnderson@barr.com>
Subject: RE: Ford Lake Dam 2025 Part 12D CA - Barr fees for prep studies?
 
Dave,
Here are my thoughts on the needs for Ford Lake. In all of these, there are of course meetings and
reports that are included in the costs.
 

1. Hydrologic Hazard Curves / Loading
a. First, Ford Lake is a high hazard dam. In the absence of risk analysis, PMF is the IDF. We

need to make sure there is a solid PMF estimate.

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.barr.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cmsaranen%40ypsitownship.org%7C383cefbd2f3240136aee08dc81b7ac05%7Cbcea4bedcdf14447a5fd5657048b80c1%7C0%7C0%7C638527873071860355%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Ru84%2BtGqYa3t9T07nxVZP7PfnuFawuobyIEKAy71Mv4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.barr.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cmsaranen%40ypsitownship.org%7C383cefbd2f3240136aee08dc81b7ac05%7Cbcea4bedcdf14447a5fd5657048b80c1%7C0%7C0%7C638527873071860355%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Ru84%2BtGqYa3t9T07nxVZP7PfnuFawuobyIEKAy71Mv4%3D&reserved=0


b. In November 2022, we recommended a new PMF study, so this should be undertaken. THIS
MAY NOT BE NEEDED (OR REDUCED) IF FRENCH LANDING’S CA PRODUCED A NEW
PMF STUDY.

c. We will also need an Inflow Flood-Frequency analysis and solid Rating Curve for the facility
to properly inform the routing model, RMC-RFA.

2. Dam Break Analysis
a. We will need to develop an updated 2D RAS model to properly do the dam break work, and

that will have to go to Lake Erie to properly check for cascading failures.
b. There are some good models to start from, but this will take some effort.
c. If we can have access to any recent RAS models for the French Landing dam CA, then this

will cut down on the effort.
d. I would plan to model the Fair Weather event, IDF (PMF?) event, and an intermediate event

to try and identify maximum potential consequences.
3. Consequence Assessment

a. I think we can take the RCEM or LifeSim approach. Seems LifeSim is preferred more and
more, and with populated areas downstream, this may be the better choice.

b. We will do a simple assessment (order of magnitude) of economic consequences.
 

Hydrologic Hazard Curves Cost Estimate Notes
New PMF Study $90k May not be necessary, depending on French

Landing
Inflow Flood-Frequency Curve $10k  
Updated Rating Curve $6k May not be necessary, if current curve is solid
RMC-RFA Flood Routing $11k  
Reports and Meetings $25k  
Sum Total for HHCs $142k Could be down to about $50k, if PMF is not

needed.
Dam Breach Work Cost Estimate Notes
RAS Model Development $17k Could be reduced if the French Landing CA

produced a good RAS model
Survey $15k Assumed some survey of structures, bridges,

or bathymetry may be needed.
Breach & No Breach Runs $20k  
Mapping $11k  
Reports and Meetings $15k  
Sum Total for Dam Breach $78k  
Consequences Analysis Cost Estimate Notes
LifeSim / RCEM $15k Either approach may work; RCEM will likely be

less effort
Economics $3k  
Reports and Meetings $12k  
Sum Total for Consequences $30k  

 
 
   Cory D. Anderson, PE

   Senior Water Resources Engineer
   Minneapolis, MN office: 952.832.2872
   canderson@barr.com
   www.barr.com

mailto:canderson@barr.com
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.barr.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cmsaranen%40ypsitownship.org%7C383cefbd2f3240136aee08dc81b7ac05%7Cbcea4bedcdf14447a5fd5657048b80c1%7C0%7C0%7C638527873071869530%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Pi1gtf0EfH4bJ5cBvN%2Fb8gPB7kS0OzhuqbMLElGx%2FPg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.barr.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cmsaranen%40ypsitownship.org%7C383cefbd2f3240136aee08dc81b7ac05%7Cbcea4bedcdf14447a5fd5657048b80c1%7C0%7C0%7C638527873071877607%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Cv2IKXb1QVnAD4pQpxqAE3Caih7RiCkYA93Ys2HTxQU%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.barr.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cmsaranen%40ypsitownship.org%7C383cefbd2f3240136aee08dc81b7ac05%7Cbcea4bedcdf14447a5fd5657048b80c1%7C0%7C0%7C638527873071877607%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Cv2IKXb1QVnAD4pQpxqAE3Caih7RiCkYA93Ys2HTxQU%3D&reserved=0


If you no longer wish to receive marketing e-mails from Barr, respond to communications@barr.com and we will be happy to honor
your request.
 
From: Bethany Kelly <BKelly@barr.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 22, 2024 4:47 PM
To: David Hibbs <DHibbs@barr.com>
Subject: RE: Ford Lake Dam 2025 Part 12D CA - Barr fees for prep studies?
 
Probabilistic loading estimates for seismic loads:
 
Dynamic seismic data from the USGS Earthquake Hazard Tool will be reviewed for the site location and
summarized to support the L2RA discussions. Additional slope stability modeling cases will be evaluated, as
needed based on the seismic data and other review, for additional seismic load cases and seepage conditions
(assuming up to 2 days of work) using the right embankment model developed by Barr in 2022. A brief memo will
be prepared, including summary tables and figures to document the anticipated PGA at the dam for a variety of
annual frequency events up to the 1-in-1,000,000-year event and summary tables and modeling outputs for
additional modeling runs.
 
Approx. $7-8k
 
 
 
   Bethany Kelly, PE
   She/her/hers
   Vice President
   Senior Geotechnical Engineer
   office: 734.922.4445
   cell: 248.770.5093  
 
 

mailto:communications@barr.com
mailto:BKelly@barr.com
mailto:DHibbs@barr.com


 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Michael Saranen, Operation Manager 
 
Date:  July 9, 2024 
 
Subject: Request to Approve Ballard Marine Construction Sluice Gate Inspection Project 
Change Order #1 and #2 for the Hydro Station in the amount of $ 15,000.00 to be charged to 
101.902.981.110. 
 
At the April 16th, 2024, Board meeting, the Board approved Ballard Marine Construction to 
Sluice Gate Inspection Project in the amount of $ 322,500.00 
 
Change Order #1, no change in base contract amount, was done to fulfill the Township Builder 
Risk insurance for the project. The contractor had obtained the coverage. 
 
Change Order #2, Contingency Budget for project ($15,000.00) 
Owner directed work proposed and agreed upon by Ballard to be priced per hour 
 

Including but not limited to: 
• Hanging new safety signs on upstream side of bridge 
• Hanging lake elevation sign on spillway crest  
• Video inspection of Sluice gate prior to removal 
• Spillway hatch lifting lugs (if possible) 
  
Pricing to be: $1,150.00 per hour of additional, outside of original scope, work. 
Assumed tasks are not able to be work concurrently with other tasks and will require all of crew 
and equipment's attention. 
 
It is the request approve Change Order #2 for the project in the amount of $ 15,000.00 and is 
using funds that were received from ARPA and is budgeted in line item # 101.902.981.110. 
 
Please place this on the next available Broad Agenda under “Authorization and Bids”. 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  John Hines, Municipal Services Director 
 
Date:  July 10, 2024 
 
Subject:          Request authorization to accept the low quote for $421,553.00 from Heaney 

General Contracting for the sanitary and water line site work at Ford 
Heritage Park and restroom demolition, site work and pavilion installation at 
Lakeside Park as part of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) projects 
funding.   

 
 
The Residential Services Department is requesting authorization to accept the low bid and 
authorize the signing of the agreement with Heaney General Contracting, Inc for $223,425.06 for 
the sanitary and water line site work at Ford Heritage Park budgeted in account 101-902-981.080 
and $198,127.94 for the restroom demolition, site work and pavilion installation at Lakeside Park 
Shelter budgeted in account 101-902-981.120.  Spicer Group is also recommending a 5% 
contingency being awarded to the total contract price to $442,600.00.  
 
Due to the price quoted for the Lakeside Park repairs being over the estimated amount and 
budgeted amount we are requesting a line-item transfer from the budgeted Community Center 
Ball Park line item to cover the shortfall for construction and construction engineering.   
 
Attached is a letter by Spicer Group recommending Heaney General Contracting for award of 
bid.   
 
The Board of Trustees previously approved at the June 18th, 2024 meeting to seek bids and bids 
were opened on July 9th, 2024.   Bids received are listed below:   
 
    Ford Heritage      Lakeside    
 
KAB Enterprises, Inc:  $341,729.99  $175,416.02    
Decima, LLC:   $322,873.45  $176,095.64    
Heaney General Co.:  $223,425.06  $198,127.94    
 
 





Ford Heritage and Lakeside Park Improvements 
PROJECT NO. 134586SG2023
TAKEN ON:

Item Estimated

No. Quantity Unit Description Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount

Burns Park 

1. 1 Ea Mobilizations, Max 5% $25,800.00 $25,800.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $23,776.69 $23,776.69

2. 73 Syd Pavement Removal $25.46 $1,858.58 $42.00 $3,066.00 $16.50 $1,204.50

3. 1 LS Remove and Reinstall Fence $1,362.73 $1,362.73 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00

4. 1 LS Demolish Existing Bathroom - Lakeside $23,980.33 $23,980.33 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $7,975.00 $7,975.00

5. 1 LS Demolish Existing Concrete Pad - Lakeside $14,382.73 $14,382.73 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $3,575.00 $3,575.00

6. 465 Lin Ft Sanitary Sewer Lead, 6 inch $159.73 $74,274.45 $41.00 $19,065.00 $115.00 $53,475.00

7. 975 Lin Ft Copper Water Service, 1-1/2 inch $81.52 $79,482.00 $75.00 $73,125.00 $99.00 $96,525.00

8. 1 Ea 1 1/2 inch Corporation & Saddle $3,470.73 $3,470.73 $1,350.00 $1,350.00 $1,391.50 $1,391.50

9. 1 Ea 1-1/2 inch Curb Stop & Box $2,974.73 $2,974.73 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,278.20 $1,278.20

10. 132 Cyd Excavation, Earth $38.51 $5,083.32 $113.00 $14,916.00 $118.80 $15,681.60

11. 134 Cyd Aggregate Base $75.87 $10,166.58 $87.50 $11,725.00 $77.00 $10,318.00

12. 408 Sft Sidewalk, 5 inch $16.42 $6,699.36 $17.50 $7,140.00 $11.00 $4,488.00

13. 128 Syd Concrete Pad, 6 inch $168.36 $21,550.08 $22.00 $2,816.00 $212.00 $27,136.00

14. 15 Syd Demolish and Reinstall Concrete Driveway, 6 inch $197.90 $2,968.50 $200.00 $3,000.00 $1,045.00 $15,675.00

15. 5 Lin Ft Concrete Curb & Gutter, Det F4 $1,016.55 $5,082.75 $360.00 $1,800.00 $126.50 $632.50

16. 12 Ton HMA, 36A $1,043.56 $12,522.72 $275.00 $3,300.00 $1,100.00 $13,200.00

17. 1 Ea Sanitary Sewer Connection $53,194.73 $53,194.73 $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00

18. 1 Ea Water Service Connection $4,834.73 $4,834.73 $7,200.00 $7,200.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

19. 1 LS Electrical Extension and Connection - Lakeside $24,240.73 $24,240.73 $75,000.00 $75,000.00 $23,310.00 $23,310.00

20. 1 LS Electrical Extension and Connection - Ford Heritage $55,922.73 $55,922.73 $75,000.00 $75,000.00 $45,287.00 $45,287.00

21. 1 LS Pavilion, 20'x44', Supply and Install - Lakeside $60,257.77 $60,257.77 $62,000.00 $62,000.00 $75,230.10 $75,230.10

22. 2,900 Syd Restoration $7.57 $21,953.00 $3.00 $8,700.00 $9.90 $28,710.00

23. 1 LS Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control $5,082.73 $5,082.73 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

FORD HERITAGE AND LAKESIDE PARK IMPROVEMENT TOTAL $517,146.01 $421,553.00 $498,969.09

9-Jul-24

KAB Enterprises, Inc. Decima, Inc.Heaney 

Prepared By: Spicer Group, Inc. Burns and West Willow Park Improvements



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  John Hines, Municipal Services Director 
 
Date:  July 10, 2024 
 
Subject:   Request authorization to Accept the low quote for $554,810.50 from KAB       

Enterprises, INC for the repairs of Burns Park walkway and playground 
repairs and West Willow Park walkway and playground replacement. 

 
The Residential Services Department is requesting authorization to accept the low bid and 
authorize the signing of the agreement with KAB Enterprises for $554,810.50 for the repair of 
the walkway and playground base at Burns Park budgeted in account 101-902-981.010 and 
$398,805.92 for the replacement of the walkway and playground equipment at West Willow 
Park Shelter budgeted in account 101-902-981.150.  Spicer Group is also recommending a 5% 
contingency being awarded to the total contract price to $582,600.00. 
 
Due to the price quoted for the West Willow Park repairs being over the estimated amount and 
budgeted amount we are requesting a line-item transfer from the budgeted Community Center 
Ball Park line item to cover the shortfall for construction and construction engineering.   
 
Attached is a letter by Spicer Group recommending KAB Enterprises for award of bid.  Spicer is 
also recommending the award and price include the alternate that was included, requesting the 
replacement of the walkway with asphalt from the parking area to the secondary park entrance.      
 
The Board of Trustees previously approved at the May 21st, 2024 meeting to seek bids and bids 
were opened on July 2nd, 2024.   Bids received are listed below:   
 
    Burns     West Willow  Alternate  
 
KAB Enterprises, Inc:  $156,004.58  $378,938.42  $398,805.92  
Decima, LLC:   $100,555.37  $485,005.42  $476,994.55  
 





Burns and West Willow Park Improvements
PROJECT NO. 134586SG2023
TAKEN ON:

Item Estimated

No. Quantity Unit Description Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount

Burns Park 

1. 1 Ea Mobilizations, Max 5% $7,090.62 $7,090.62 $3,690.03 $3,690.03

2. 420 Syd Pavement Removal $60.28 $25,317.60 $11.50 $4,830.00

3. 540 Syd Removal of Safety Surfacing $32.85 $17,739.00 8.05$                  $4,347.00

4. 442 Lin Ft Playground Curb $42.51 $18,789.42 57.50$                $25,415.00

5. 420 Syd Safety Surfacing $36.26 $15,229.20 25.19$                $10,579.80

6. 530 Syd Aggregate Base, 8 inch $52.70 $27,931.00 23.00$                $12,190.00

7. 80 Ton HMA, 13A $254.51 $20,360.80 201.25$              $16,100.00

8. 370 Sft Sidewalk, 4 inch $19.15 $7,085.50 11.50$                $4,255.00

9. 3,160 Syd Restoration $4.02 $12,703.20 4.60$                  $14,536.00

10. 1 LS Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control $3,758.24 $3,758.24 4,612.54$           $4,612.54

BURNS PARK TOTAL $156,004.58 $100,555.37

11. 1 Ea Mobilizations, Max 5% $16,622.84 $16,622.84 18,131.04$         $18,131.04

12. 630 Syd Removal of Safety Surfacing $32.71 $20,607.30 8.05$                  $5,071.50

13. 1 LS Removal of Play Equipment $12,336.84 $12,336.84 34,500.00$         $34,500.00

14. 2 Ea Relocate Existing Bench $976.42 $1,952.84 460.00$              $920.00

15. 273 Lin Ft Playground Curb $43.27 $11,812.71 57.50$                $15,697.50

16. 1,310 Syd Gravel Walk $11.62 $15,222.20 51.75$                $67,792.50

17. 1 LS
Playground Equipment, West Willow, Supply and 
Install $203,821.55 $203,821.55 271,797.90$       $271,797.90

18. 630 Syd Safety Surfacing $32.09 $20,216.70 24.09$                $15,176.70

19. 1,440 Syd Aggregate Base, 8 inch $44.13 $63,547.20 23.00$                $33,120.00

2-Jul-24

West Willow Park 

KAB Enterprises, Inc. Decima, Inc.

Prepared By: Spicer Group, Inc. Burns and West Willow Park Improvements



Item Estimated

No. Quantity Unit Description Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount

KAB Enterprises, Inc. Decima, Inc.

20. 2,000 Syd Restoration $4.52 $9,040.00 4.60$                  $9,200.00

21. 1 LS Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control $3,758.24 $3,758.24 13,598.28$         $13,598.28

WEST WILLOW PARK TOTAL $378,938.42 $485,005.42

TOTAL OF BURNS AND WEST WILLOW PARK $534,943.00 $585,560.79

Prepared By: Spicer Group, Inc. Burns and West Willow Park Improvements



Item Estimated

No. Quantity Unit Description Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount

KAB Enterprises, Inc. Decima, Inc.

22. 1 Ea Mobilizations, Max 5% $18,127.54 $18,127.54 17,831.57$         $17,831.57

23. 630 Syd Removal of Safety Surfacing $32.71 $20,607.30 8.05$                  $5,071.50

24. 1 LS Removal of Play Equipment $12,336.84 $12,336.84 34,500.00$         $34,500.00

25. 2 Ea Relocate Existing Bench $976.42 $1,952.84 460.00$              $920.00

26. 273 Lin Ft Playground Curb $43.27 $11,812.71 57.50$                $15,697.50

27. 700 Syd Gravel Walk $11.62 $8,134.00 57.50$                $40,250.00

28. 1 LS Playground Equipment, West Willow, Supply and Install $203,821.55 $203,821.55 271,797.90$       $271,797.90

29. 630 Syd Safety Surfacing $32.09 $20,216.70 23.98$                $15,107.40

30. 1,440 Syd Aggregate Base, 8 inch $44.13 $63,547.20 23.00$                $33,120.00

31. 100 Ton HMA, 13A $254.51 $25,451.00 201.25$              $20,125.00

32. 2,000 Syd Restoration $4.52 $9,040.00 4.60$                  $9,200.00

33. 1 LS Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control $3,758.24 $3,758.24 13,373.68$         $13,373.68

West Willow Park - Alternate Total $398,805.92 $476,994.55

TOTAL OF BURNS AND WEST WILLOW PARK - ALTERNATE $554,810.50 $577,549.92

West Willow Park - Alternate

Prepared By: Spicer Group, Inc. Burns and West Willow Park Improvements



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  John Hines, Municipal Services Director 
 
Date:  July 10, 2024 
 
Subject:          Request authorization to accept the low quote for $207,530.00 from 

Innovista, LLC for the playground re-surfacing project at Ford Heritage as 
part of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) projects funding.   

 
 
The Residential Services Department is requesting authorization to accept the bid and authorize 
the signing of the agreement with Innovista, LLC for $207,530.00 for the playground re-
surfacing at Ford Heritage Park budgeted in account 101-902-981.090.  This project was bid with 
an alternate to re-surface the entirety of the playground surface with poured in place instead of 
fiber mulch.  Township staff and Spicer Group are requesting the alternate be accepted and 
Spicer Group is also recommending a 5% contingency being awarded to the total contract price 
to $218,000.00.  
 
Decima, LLC was the lower bidder, however, did not understand the scope of the project and is 
requesting to withdraw their bid. They have submitted an official withdrawal which is attached. 
 
Due to the price quoted for the Ford Heritage Park playground replacements being over the 
estimated amount and budgeted amount we are requesting a line-item transfer from the budgeted 
Ford Heritage Park restroom installation line item to cover the shortfall for construction and 
construction engineering.   
 
Attached is a letter by Spicer Group recommending Innovista, LLC for award of bid.   
 
The Board of Trustees previously approved at the June 18th, 2024 meeting to seek bids and bids 
were opened on July 9th, 2024.   Bids received are listed below:   
 
    Playground Base Bid      Alternate    
 
Decima, LLC:   $48,417.60   $52,471.65  (Withdrawn)  
Innovista, LLC:  $138,224.00   $207,530.00    
Penchura:   $177,264.00   $260,959.00    
Gametime:   $240,300.00   $343,650.00  
 













 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  John Hines, Municipal Services Director 
 
Date:  July 10, 2024 
 
RE: Request Authorization to approve Spicer Group to provide Construction 

Inspection and Administration related to the Burns Park, Ford Heritage 
Park Restroom, Ford Heritage Park Playground, Lakeside Park and West 
Willow Park for $94,000 American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) projects.    

 
The Residential Services Department is looking for authorization to approve Spicer Group to 
provide construction inspection and administration services related to the: 
 
Burns Park pathway and playground renovations for $17,500 budgeted in 101-902-981.010 
Ford Heritage Park restroom sitework for $30,000 budgeted in 101-902-981.080 
Ford Heritage Park playground re-surfacing for $7,000 budgeted in 101-902-981.090 
Lakeside Park restroom and shelter sitework for $26,000 budgeted in 101-902-981.120 
West Willow Park path and playground replacement for $17,500 budgeted in 101-902-981.150.  
 
Spicer Group was hired by the Township at the June 6th, 2023 BOT meeting to oversee the 
engineering processes for the Burns, Ford Heritage, Lakeside and West Willow Park ARPA 
projects.   
 
Spicer Group’s proposed services: 

1. Construction Inspection/Staking  
a. Provide construction staking.  
b. Make periodic site visits to observe the construction process, estimated at 
approximately one to two (1-1) times per week.  
c. Provide density testing on aggregate base and HMA pathway.  
d. Provide concrete testing on concrete curb and sidewalks.  
 

2. Construction Administration  
a. Prepare a tabulation of the bids received and prepare a letter of 
recommendation of award to the Township.  
b. Prepare contracts and circulate for signatures.  
c. Prepare progress payments and any change order necessary for the project.  
d. Attend a final walk through of the project and develop the final construction 
punch list.  
e. Review contract closeout. 









 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 


	0. 2024-07-16-Township-Board-Meeting-Agenda
	DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS
	Hydro Departmental Report  for activities in June 2024
	Ford Lake Dam (Hydro Station)
	Sargent Charles Dam

	June 2024 Fire Report
	June - 2024 montly report
	June 2024 Incident Report

	WCSO June 2024 Report
	Hydro Departmental Report  for activities in June 2024
	Ford Lake Dam (Hydro Station)
	Sargent Charles Dam

	In and Out of Area Time Ypsilanti Twp June 2024
	June 2024 Monthly Summary of Offenses for Ypsilanti Twp
	June 2024 Ypsilanti Township Executive Summary
	June 2024 Ypsilanti Twp Monthly Report

	Consent Agenda
	June 18, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Statements and Checks July 2, 2024
	Statements and Checks July 16, 2024
	June 2024 Treasurer's Report
	ATTORNEY REPORT
	NEW BUSINESS
	1. 2024 Township Water Sewer Rate Change Request (6.27.2024)
	2024 Township Water Sewer Rate Change Request
	YCUA Twp Rate 2024
	Ypsi Tws 2024 W Rate Ordinance Effective 09-01-24
	Ypsi Tws 2024 S Rate Ordinance Effective 09-01-24

	3. 475 Greenlawn
	2. Green Lawn Memo to Township Board for Final Approval
	Untitled
	Untitled
	475 Greenlawn- Aerial
	475 Greenlawn- Record Card
	481 Greenlawn- Aerial
	481 Greenlawn- Record Card
	Purchase Agreement-2024-Signed by Goode

	4. 1293 Holmes
	Holmes Rd 2024- Letter from Szczesniak
	Holmes Rd. 2024 Record Card-1275 Holmes Rd

	5.TeeSnap Memo Change
	5.TeeSnap Cash Only agreement GOGC
	6.WCC Community Center 7.10.24 BOT Memo
	6.WCC YpsiTownship Building Agreement 2024-2025
	7. Public Nuisance Board Memo - 7-16-24
	8. Raffle Memo
	8. 501c3
	8. Resolution-No.-2024-10-Gaming License 
	9. Budget Amend #9 7-16-24
	9. Budget Amend motion #9 7-16-24
	AUTHORIZATION AND BIDS
	10. Barr Memo
	10. Barr - CA studies
	11. Ballard Marine Memo
	12. Ford Heritage and Lakeside Memo 7.10 Award
	12. Ford Heritage and Lakeside Bid Rec Letter_20240710
	12. Ford Heritage and Lakeside Bid Tabs_
	13. Burns and West Willow Memo 7.10 Award Burns & WW
	13. Burns and West Willow Bid Rec Letter_20240710
	13. Burns and West Willow Bid Tabs_
	14. 7.10 Award FHP Playground Surface
	14.Spicer Rec Letter with Decima Withdrawal
	15. Spicer Burns,FHP, LS and WW Engineering
	15 Spicer CE proposal Burns, FHP, LS and WW
	PUBLIC COMMENTS



